



A Practical Guide to the SCLM Administrator Toolkit

SCLM Administrator Toolkit v5.1

Jennifer Nelson Product Specialist Rocket Software, Inc. Copyright 2009 IBM Corporation

CONTENTS

Conte	nts	ü
List of	Figures	siv
List of	Examp	lesvii
List of	Tables	viii
Revisi	on Hist	ory1
1	What	is SCLM?1
2	Why u	se the SCLM Administrator Toolkit?1
3	A Prac	ctical Case Study3
	3.1	A Brief Introduction
	3.2	Create a new project6
	3.3	Define the Types12
	3.4	Define the Groups14
	3.5	Select the Group/Type Data Sets17
	3.6	Add Language Definitions19
	3.7	Customize the DB2 CLIST27
	3.8	Build the Project29
	3.9	Create a Project Filter

	3.10	Migrate Project Assets	34
	3.11	Create Architecture Definition	39
	3.12	Test the project	54
	3.13	Deploy the project	63
4	A Case	e for the Administrator Toolkit	67
Appen	dix A: C	Create the objects	69
Appen	dix B: T	he COBOL program	72

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Nodes within SCLM Administrator Toolkit.	4
Figure 2: Create a new project.	6
Figure 3: Provide a project name and sandbox name	7
Figure 4: Specify the project definition data sets to use to create the project	8
Figure 5: Specify all data sets that contain SCLM macros required to build the project	9
Figure 6: Review the information that will be used to create your project	.10
Figure 7: The status of each task is displayed for your information.	.11
Figure 8: The Project Editor displays the newly created project, and editing can now begin	.11
Figure 9: Multiple Types can be selected by pressing the CTRL key	.12
Figure 10: Define each data sets' parameters	.13
Figure 11: A sample SCLM project hierarchy	. 15
Figure 12: Specify the groups to include in your project's hierarchy.	.15
Figure 13: The completed project hierarchy showing the direction of promotion	.16
Figure 14: Tabular form displays each group's parameters in an easy-to-view list	.17
Figure 15: Sample hierarchy illustrating different groups requiring different kinds of data sets	.18
Figure 16: Select the group/type combination data sets to include in your project	.18
Figure 17: Select the option you wish to use to create a Language Definition	.20
Figure 18: A message is returned when a language is successfully added to a project	.21
Figure 19: Specify a language to copy, but edit the language to tailor it to your project	.21
Figure 20: Expand the data set name and select the member name to use	.22
Figure 21: Make any necessary edits to the language definition to tailor it to your project	.23
Figure 22: The Translator Summary provides a list of translators defined within the language	.24
Figure 23: All FLMTRNSL macro parameters can be edited	.25
Figure 24: Edit the data sets concatenated within the FLMCPYLB macro	. 26
Figure 25: Edit the Copy data set name as necessary	.26
Figure 26: The list of language definitions is displayed within a list.	. 27
Figure 27: Automatically create the DB2 CLIST which drives the plan or package BIND process.	. 28
Figure 28: Provide BIND syntax parameters for the DB2 applications within your project	.28
Figure 29: Select the option to Build your project	.29
Figure 30: Click OK to build your project's definition into a load module	. 30
Figure 31: The status indicator provides a progress report of the current task	. 30
Figure 32: Messages are displayed within a pop-up window with additional information	.31
Figure 33: Create a project filter to view your newly created project	.31

Figure 34: Provide the project filter criteria	
Figure 35: Refresh the node to view the new project filter	
Figure 36: Expand the new project filter to see all projects that match the filte	r name33
Figure 37: Right click your project to navigate to the Migration Wizard	34
Figure 38: Click the button Add to add an asset to the list	35
Figure 39: Specify the data set that contains the assets you want to migrate.	
Figure 40: Select the data set that contains the assets to migrate	
Figure 41: Select the members you want to include in the list	
Figure 42: The selected assets to migrate are listed within the Migration Wiza	ard37
Figure 43: Specify the options to use to migrate the assets	
Figure 44: The Migration Report is returned for your review	
Figure 45: Invoke the Architecture Definition Wizard.	40
Figure 46: Select which kind of Architecture Definition to create.	41
Figure 47: Specify the name and data set type for each kind of architecture d	efinition42
Figure 48: Create the Compilation Control architecture definition	44
Figure 49: Create the Link Edit Control architecture definition	45
Figure 50: Create the DB2 BIND architecture definition	46
Figure 51: Create the High Level architecture definition.	47
Figure 52: The compilation control architecture definition is returned for your	review48
Figure 53: The link edit control architecture definition is returned for your revie	ew48
Figure 54: The DB2 bind architecture definition is returned for your review	49
Figure 55: The DB2 CLIST executes the binds when the DB2 Bind Architectu SCLM.	re Definition is built in 50
Figure 56: The High Level architecture definition is returned for your review	51
Figure 57: Specify the parameters with which to create the architecture defini	tions52
Figure 58: Informational messages are returned about the create process	52
Figure 59: View or edit architecture definitions	54
Figure 60: Specify the SCLM project whose assets you want to access	55
Figure 61: Select option 1 to view the contents of a library	56
Figure 62: Specify the data set type where the architecture definition is stored	d56
Figure 63: Build the architecture definition by selecting option C	57
Figure 64: Double check the asset specified is the one you want to build	57
Figure 65: Promote the architecture definition by selecting option P	59
Figure 66: Double check the asset specified is the one you want to promote.	60
Figure 67: Select to deploy the sandbox project	64
Figure 68: Export the new project's definition	64
Figure 69: Informational messages are returned about the deployment	65

Figure 70: Create a new project filter	.65
Figure 71: Provide the criteria for the project filter	. 66
Figure 72: Refresh the Deployed Projects node to see the new project filter.	.66
Figure 73: Collapse, then re-expand the node Deployed Projects to see the new project filter	. 67

LIST OF EXAMPLES

Example 1: SCLM Build report from high level architecture definition AUZDBSEL.	58
Example 2: SCLM Promote report from high level architecture definition AUZDBSEL	60
Example 3: Results of executing sample program AUZDBSEL from the new project	63
Example 4: Project DDL to create the necessary DB2 objects for this project	69
Example 5: Project DML for the first table to insert the necessary DB2 data for this project	69
Example 6: Project DML for the second table to insert the necessary DB2 data for this project	70
Example 7: Sample JCL to create the DB2 objects and populate the data	70
Example 8: Sample COBOL program for the DB2 project.	72

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: The features and functions of the Administrator Toolkit and the benefits they provide......2

1 What is SCLM?

One of the biggest investments of any company is the application source code that is critical to conducting everyday business. Application source code can be easily maintained and secured using IBM's Software Configuration and Library Manager, which is packaged as an integrated component of ISPF. SCLM is a comprehensive tool that has two major functions: configuration management and library management.

As a configuration manager, SCLM knows how all of the different pieces of an application's source code fit together. Not only can source, object and load modules be managed by SCLM, but any asset that resides within the application's set of libraries can be managed using SCLM, such as documentation and JCL.

Using parameters defined to SCLM, it can translate inputs into outputs, and can drive almost any procedure that translates an input to an output. Source modules can be 'linked' or 'related' to other modules such that when a change is made to one module, SCLM ensures the 'related' modules are all translated after a change is made. SCLM can also quantify the impact of a change to an application's source code.

As a library manager, SCLM controls the development cycle of the application by ensuring translated modules are promoted to the next level within the development hierarchy. In addition, SCLM can audit and track changes that are made over time to each module within the project, allowing you to fall back to a previous version of a module if an undesired change was made. SCLM can lock a module while under development to prevent concurrent work on the same piece of source code.

2 Why use the SCLM Administrator Toolkit?

Defining an application's source code within SCLM to create a project requires that the user understand the SCLM parameters and their valid options and combinations to create the desired behavior when translating an application's source code modules into executable programs. SCLM provides no user interface for creating or editing a project's definition, leaving the user to manually provide the appropriate macro parameters and their options within the proper format.

To an inexperienced SCLM project administrator, editing an SCLM project can become a daunting task, as one small change to a translator can result in project errors when used with SCLM. In addition, an experienced SCLM project administrator might prefer a more efficient and user-friendly interface, eliminating manual errors and reducing the amount of time it takes to edit an existing project's definition, or create a new project definition. Every SCLM macro, parameter and corresponding value are supported from within the Administrator Toolkit, allowing users to create simple or even complex projects.

The Administrator Toolkit is a product meant to ease the administration process by providing a rich task-oriented user interface in either traditional ISPF panels or a graphical user interface. Both new and experienced SCLM project administrators alike can benefit from content-sensitive wizards that help prevent conflicting parameter values from being defined within a project. In

1

addition, descriptive panel Help explains the purpose of each wizard and explains the details of the parameters.

The following table lists the features and functions of the Administrator Toolkit and their benefit to SCLM administrators in maintaining their SCLM project definitions.

Feature	Function	Benefit
Project Editor	User-friendly guided interface to create new projects, or edit existing projects.	Users new to SCLM can be productive without understanding the logic behind SCLM's features and functions.
Projects in a Sandbox	Modify the project's definition as much or as little as necessary without impacting production projects.	Define and test a project's definition in a safe environment without impacting production. Ensure that users who follow the rules only deploy working projects into production.
Architecture Definition Wizard	Create architecture definitions from JCL, from load modules, or from the guided wizard.	Users are not required to know the nuances of how to create an architecture definition. Instead, the Architecture Definition Wizard can create an architecture definition from a variety of sources. Or, if an experienced user would prefer, they may create the architecture definition from the wizard which guides them through the process.
Language Definition Wizard	Create language definitions from existing JCL, from load modules, from existing language definitions, or create them from within the guided wizard.	Language definitions can be hard to get right. Using the content-sensitive fields within the Language Definition Wizard, languages are created in less time with fewer errors.
Clone an existing project	Copy an existing project's definition and optionally the project	Projects can contain thousands of assets. With one keystroke or the click of one button, the Administrator Toolkit can automatically copy everything within a project for inclusion in another.
Migration Wizard	Migrate assets into a project using the guided wizard interface.	Users can pick and choose which assets to include from another project, or outside of SCLM control using the guidance of the task-oriented user interface. The Administrator Toolkit effortlessly copies assets into the SCLM project and registers the assets with the SCLM accounting dataset.
Remote Migration Wizard	Migrate remote assets into a project using the guided wizard interface.	Users can easily migrate assets that reside on their PC or another remote location and maintain the assets within SCLM with no extra effort.
Administer EAC Profiles	Track EAC violations, create new EAC applications and profiles, edit existing ones, or delete them.	The Administrator Toolkit provides users an intuitive graphical user interface to EAC to administer EAC profiles within the same GUI interface as they administer their SCLM projects.
Administer RACF profiles	Create new RACF Data Set Profiles, Edit, and Delete existing RACF Data set Profiles.	The Administrator Toolkit provides an intuitive graphical user interface to manage RACF data set profiles.

Table 1: The features and functions of the Administrator Toolkit and the benefits they provide.

Feature	Function	Benefit
Maintain a project's VSAM datasets	Create, maintain, and run arbitrary REXX Execs that perform essential functions on SCLM- managed libraries. A list of REXX Execs is provided to get the administrator started performing common tasks.	SCLM project administrators can either execute sample REXX Execs, or add their own scripts to the menu, providing flexible access to listing and running those tasks most often used.
Build a project definition	Automatically assembles project definitions with one click.	Assemble and link JCL doesn't need to be maintained. Rather, the Administrator Toolkit automatically creates all the components required by SCLM to recognize the project as an SCLM project.
Project Explorer	Automatically discover existing SCLM Projects to administer.	Users can find the project they are interested in administering from a list without having to know its location in the system.

3 A Practical Case Study

This white paper will focus on creating a new DB2 project definition from scratch using the Project Editor. Existing language definitions will be copied into the project using the Language Definition Wizard, but will be edited for the needs of this specific case. Assets from another project will be migrated into this project using the Migration Wizard. The appropriate architecture definitions required for a DB2 project will be created using the Architecture Definition Wizard.

The new project will be built by the Project Editor and then used from within SCLM to demonstrate the relationship between the SCLM Administrator Toolkit and SCLM.

The graphical user interface will be used for the purpose of this white paper. This white paper makes the assumption that the Eclipsed-based graphical user interface has already been installed and configured, as no further configuration instructions will be provided. For detailed instructions on installing and configuring the graphical user interface, please refer to the *IBM SCLM Administrator Toolkit Installation and Configuration Guide, SC23-9567-00*, in the chapter entitled "Install and configure the Eclipse workstation client."

3.1 A Brief Introduction

After logging into the host connection on which to create a new SCLM project, the Remote System View will list those SCLM projects that already exist. Figure 1 displays the nodes that display beneath SCLM within the Remote Systems View.



Figure 1: Nodes within SCLM Administrator Toolkit.

When a host connection is made, the icon next to SCLM will appear green, and will be connected. When a host connection is disconnected, that is, when you log off of a host connection, the icon will appear red and separated.

The EAC icon allows you to access IBM Enhanced Access Control for SCLM, if it has been installed on the host. However, you can still use the Administrator Toolkit's RACF Dataset Profile functions without having Enhanced Access Control installed.

Within the EAC node, EAC profiles, application/function pairs, and high/low program pairs can be created, edited, or deleted. Likewise, EAC violations can be tracked and viewed from within the EAC node. For more information on the administration and management of EAC profiles and applications, refer to the *IBM SCLM Administrator Toolkit User's Guide*, *SC23-9566-00*, in the chapter entitled "Administer EAC and RACF".

When the EAC node is expanded, the RACF Dataset Profile node is displayed as shown in Figure 1 on page 4. Using the interface the Administrator Toolkit provides, you can view, edit and create RACF Dataset Profiles. However, you must have RACF Special authority to use edit and create new RACF dataset profiles. For more information on the administration and management of RACF Dataset profiles and applications, refer to the *IBM SCLM Administrator Toolkit User's Guide*, *SC23-9566-00*, in the chapter entitled "Administer EAC and RACF". For more information on the RACF profile options available, refer to the *IBM Security Server RACF General User's Guide*.

The icon titled Editable Sandboxes, when expanded, will display a list of SCLM projects whose definitions are in test and are not in production. Projects listed in Editable Sandboxes are in a separate contained environment for the purpose of testing the behavior of the project without affecting production. When a project's test results are successful, it can be deployed into production. When a project is deployed, it will no longer appear in the list of Editable Sandboxes; rather, it will appear in the list of Deployed Projects when the Deployed Project list

is refreshed. Alternate projects are fully supported with sandboxes. All SCLM project parameters are available and can be used to define alternate projects within the Administrator Toolkit.

The icon titled Deployed Projects, when expanded, lists those SCLM projects whose definitions are being actively used in production. The associated sandbox for these projects no longer exists, and therefore cannot be tested without affecting production. If a project must be edited to change its definition, you may either create a sandbox for your project in which to test your edits, or make edits directly into the deployed project. When you edit a deployed project, it will appear in the list of Editable Sandboxes for the duration of time the project is being edited. Once your edits are complete, you must re-deploy your project for the edits to take effect. Deployed alternate projects are treated in the same manner as full projects, in that deployed alternate projects can be edited at any time and re-deployed when changes have been completed.

The last icon listed within the Remote Systems view is Reports. When expanded, this node will contain the results of the tasks you performed within the Administrator Toolkit. The reports are for your information and to assist customer support. To delete a report, simply expand the node to list all reports and highlight the one you want to delete. Right click the report, then select the option titled Delete. To keep the report even after you close your Administrator Toolkit GUI application, right click the report name, then select the option titled Make Persistent.

3.2 Create a new project

Creating a new project can be done in one of three ways. An existing project can be imported, cloned, or a new project can be created from the beginning. Importing an existing project is an operation you do if you have SCLM projects created without use of the Administrator Toolkit and want to manage the project with the Administrator Toolkit. Cloning an existing project allows you to copy not only the project's definition, but you may optionally choose to copy its corresponding group/type data sets and their contents as well as accounting, audit, and version history.

In this case, a new project will be created from scratch. Highlight the icon Editable Sandboxes, then right click to get an additional menu. Select **New** then select **SCLM Project**, as shown in Figure 2 below on page 6.



Figure 2: Create a new project.

A window titled Project Definition Wizard will display, allowing you to provide the project name. Because SCLM uses the project name as the high level qualifier of all project-related data sets, the project name you supply must follow MVS data set naming standards, as well as follow RACF rules within your shop. Also within the Project Definition Wizard window is a checkbox titled Create Sandbox, as shown in Figure 3 on page 7. It is this option that allows you to create your project within a test environment before deploying the completed project into production.

🔯 Project Defi	nition Wizard
Project Defin	ition 🗖
Specify Project	Definitions.
Project Name	CSJENN
Alternate	
Source Member	CSJENN
DBCS Preferen	ces
Language	N V
Codepage	1140
DBCS Char	acters Present
Create Serv	llan.
Create Sand	
Sandbox high le	
?	< Back Next > Einish Cancel

Figure 3: Provide a project name and sandbox name.

Provide a project name as well as a sandbox name. Both values will become the high level qualifier of the SCLM-managed data sets and should adhere to MVS data set naming standards as well as adhere to any RACF rules within your shop. That is to say, you must have RACF authority to create data sets that begin with the project name and sandbox name you provide. Click **Next** to continue.

Note: It is not recommended that you use a Codepage other than 1140 for your project definition.

The next window, titled Project Definition Data Sets, is displayed, allowing you to define the data sets that will be used in creating the project, as shown in Figure 4. These data sets are referred to as PROJDEFS data sets, and do not contain application source code; rather, these data sets will be used by the Administrator Toolkit to store the parameters and options specified to define the project, as well as the listings when the project's load module is assembled and linked.

roject Definition [Data Sets	
Description	Data Set Name	
SOURCE	CSJENN.PROJDEFS.SOURCE	
JCL	CSJENN.PROJDEFS.JCL	
PROC	CSJENN.PROJDEFS.PROC	Browse
WORK	CSJENN, PROJDEFS, WORK	
LISTINGS	CSJENN, PROJDEFS, LIST	DCB Info
LINK MAPS	CSJENN, PROJDEFS, LMAP	
OBJECT	CSJEININ, PROJDEES, CLIST	Add
CLIST	C3JENN, PROJDEP3, CLIST	Remove
		Add to Profile

Figure 4: Specify the project definition data sets to use to create the project.

To change any of the data sets within this window, simply click on the data set name to activate the field. It is advised, however, that the data set high level qualifier not be changed, as it corresponds to the project's name. To add a data set to the list, you may click the button titled Add. In this case, the project's default PROJDEFS data sets will be used. Click **Next** to continue defining the project.

Note: There are several PROJDEFS data sets whose names cannot be changed since they are required for the correct operation of SCLM and the SCLM Administrator Toolkit. These are not shown on this screen and are the PROJDEFS.LOAD data set and PROJDEFS.SETTINGS.* set of data sets.

The next window, titled SYSLIB Data Sets, is displayed and lists those data sets that contain copybooks, language definitions, or other SCLM macros that must be resolved when assembling and linking the project's load module, as displayed in Figure 5.

Project Definition W	fizard	
Pecify SYSLIB Data Sets	s.	
SYSLIB Data Sets		
Description SYSLIB Data Set 1 SYSLIB Data Set 2	Data Set Name CSJENN.PROJDEFS.SOURCE ISP.SISPMACS	Add Remove Browse DCB Info
3	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >	<u>Finish</u> Cancel

Figure 5: Specify all data sets that contain SCLM macros required to build the project.

The data set listed as SYSLIB Data Set 1 must be the project's SOURCE data set and cannot be changed. The data set listed as SYSLIB Data Set 2 is normally the SCLM macro library where most language definitions are stored. The data set name may be edited by placing your cursor on the data set name. This activates the field and allows you to edit the data set name. If there are additional copybooks or languages that reside in other data sets that you would like to include within the project definition to resolve dependencies, you may do so by clicking the button titled Add. Click **Next** when you have completed adding data sets to the SYSLIB concatenation.

The last Project Wizard panel, titled Project Definition Information, is displayed allowing you to review the information you provided to create the data sets associated with your project's definition, as shown in Figure 6.

R	🔯 Project Definition Wizard				
F	Project Definition Information				
	Press Finish to accept this Project information.				
	Draiast Name	CS JENIN			
	Alternate	CSIENN			
	Source Member	CSJENN			
	Language	EN			
	Codepage	1140			
	DBCS Characters Present	false			
	Use PDSE for Library Data Sets	true			
	Project Definition Data Sets:				
	SOURCE	CSJENN.PROJDEFS.SOURCE			
	JCL	CSJENN, PROJDEFS, JCL			
	PROC	CSJENN, PROJDEFS, PROC			
	LISTINGS				
	LINK MAPS	CSIENN, PROIDEES, I MAP			
	OBJECT	CSJENN,PROJDEFS,OBJ			
	CLIST	CSJENN, PROJDEFS, CLIST			
	SYSLIB Data Set 1	CSJENN.PROJDEFS.SOURCE			
	SYSLIB Data Set 2	ISP.SISPMACS			
	0	< <u>Back</u> <u>N</u> ext > <u>Finish</u> Cancel			
11					

Figure 6: Review the information that will be used to create your project.

To make any changes to the data sets that will be used to create your project's definition, click the button titled Back. To complete your project's definition, click the button titled **Finish**. The Administrator Toolkit will begin creating the specified data sets, and will display the status of the task on the bottom right-hand side of the Administrator Toolkit perspective, as shown in Figure 7 on page 11.

Creating new project: (28%)	- III Ć)

Figure 7: The status of each task is displayed for your information.

When the Administrator Toolkit has completed creating the project's definition data sets, the Project Editor window will display the new project, as shown in Figure 8.

Eefault Data Sets DS2 management Project Information Project Information Project Name: CSJENNA Alternate Name:	🗖 RS22 V5.1 GA.Sandbox: CSJENNA [Main] 🔀		- 8
Project Information Project Name: CSJENNA Externalize VSAM Allocations Externalize VSAM Member Miscellaneous FLMCNTRL Parameters DASD Unit: SYSALLDA VIQ Unit: VIO Max VIO Records: 5000 Max jines per report page: 60 I'ranslator options override	Default Data Sets DB2 management		
Project Name: CSJENNA Alternate Name: Externalize VSAM Allocations Externalize VSAM Member Miscellaneous FLMCNTRL Parameters DASD Unit: VIO DASD Unit: SYSALLDA VIQ Unit: VIO Max VIO Records: 5000 Max lines per report page: 60 Iranslator options override VSAM RLS available 60 Enable Member Lodging SCLM Administrator User Id 60 Perform Cross Dependency Dynamic Updates Check Security Subsystem 60 Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits	Project Information		
Externalize VSAM Allocations Externalize VSAM Member Miscellaneous FLMCNTRL Parameters DASD Unit: VIQ Unit: VIO Max VIO Records: 5000 Max (ines per report page: 60 Figure 100 If anslator options override Image: VSAM RLS available Figure 100 Figure 100 If anslator options override Image: VSAM RLS available Figure 100 Figure 100 If anslator options override Image: VSAM RLS available Figure 100 Figure 100 If anslator options override Image: VSAM RLS available Image: VSAM RLS available Figure 100 If anslator options override Image: VSAM Administrator User Id Image: VSAM Administrator User Id Image: VSAM Administrator User Id If anslator options override Image: VSAM Administrator User Id Image: VSAM Administrator User Id Image: VSAM Administrator User Id If anslator options Security: Subsystem Image: VSAM Administrator User Id Image: VSAM Administrator User Id Image: Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits	Project Name: CSJENNA	Alternate Name:	
Miscellaneous FLMCNTRL Parameters DASD Unit: VIQ Unit: Max VIO Records: 5000 Max Jines per report page: 60 Iranslator options override	Externalize VSAM Allocations	Externalize VSAM Member	
DASD Unit: SYSALLDA VIQ Unit: VIO Max VIO Records: 5000 Max lines per report page: 60 I'ranslator options override I'ySAM RLS available I'sSAM RLS available Enable Member Lodging SCLM Administrator User Id I'estimation Perform Cross Dependency Dynamic Updates I'gheck Security Subsystem I'gheck Security Subsystem I'estimation I'estimation	Miscellaneous FLMCNTRL Parameters		
Max VIO Records: 5000 Max lines per report page: 60 Iranslator options override VSAM RLS available Enable Member Lodging SCLM Administrator User Id Perform Cross Dependency Dynamic Updates Check Security Subsystem Check Security Subsystem	DASD Unit: SYSALLDA	VIO Unit: VIO	
Iranslator options override <pre></pre>	Max VIO Records: 5000	Max lines per report page: 60	
Enable Member Lodging SCLM Administrator User Id Perform Cross Dependency Dynamic Updates	Translator options override	SAM RLS available	
Perform Cross Dependency Dynamic Updates Gheck Security Subsystem Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits	Enable Member Locking	SCLM Administrator User Id	
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits	Perform Cross Dependency Dynamic Update	25	
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits	Check Security Subsystem		
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Service User Macros User Exits			
	Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types	Authorizations Groups Group/Type Language Definitions NPROM Se	arvice User Macros User Exits
Creating new project: (85%)		Creating new pr	oject: (85%)

Figure 8: The Project Editor displays the newly created project, and editing can now begin.

Within the Project Editor, all SCLM macros and their corresponding parameters can be implicitly edited, added or deleted. The tabs across the bottom of the Project Editor allow you to jump from function to function as necessary to define your project. For example, the SCLM macro FLMLANGL pertains to language definitions. Therefore, clicking on the tab titled Language Definitions will allow you to edit parameters related to the FLMLANGL macro.

In this example, data set types will be added next, so click on the tab titled **Types** in the Project Editor.

3.3 Define the Types

Data set types are those kinds of data sets that you add to a project to store application modules of that type. For example, COBOL source code should be stored in a data set type called COBOL, while java source code should be stored in a data set type called JAVA. Each project will require different kinds of data sets to store different kinds of objects that are pertinent to the project being created. Planning ahead of time for your project will reduce the effort and time required to create and test your project.

On the tab titled Types, there are two frames; the left-hand frame displays those data set types that are pre-defined. That is, their data set parameters have already been specified, and they can be included in your project. The right-hand frame will list those data set types that are included in your project. Upon creating a new project, this frame will be empty, as shown in Figure 9.

	-	,		1	1	1		
-	Туре 🔺	Extended	Avg No o	No of Me	Backup	IsaPack	Packfile	Reus
				1		1		
>>								
<								
<<								
				1			1	
-1	4							
acte Control Da	ata Sets Types A	uthorizations G	roups Group/		ne Definitio		A Service	Liser Ma

Figure 9: Multiple Types can be selected by pressing the CTRL key.

You may select many different data set types from the left-hand frame by pressing and holding down the CTRL key while you select the data set types with the mouse, then clicking the single right arrow to move the selected types into the right-hand frame. Or, you may simply click on one data set at a time, and select the single right arrow to move the selected data set to the right-hand frame. Clicking on the double right arrow will move all default data set types from the left-hand frame into the right-hand frame for inclusion into your project.

To include a data set type that is not listed within the Default Types frame, click the button titled Add on the right-hand side of the Types tab to add and define your own data set type. It will then appear in the list of selected types and will be included in your project.

In this example, we have included the data set types BINDDEF, CCDEF, COBOL, DBRM, DB2CLIST, DB2OUT, GENDEF, LECDEF, LIST, LKEDLIST, LOAD and OBJ.

When you have completed selecting the types of data sets to include in your project, you must then provide values for each of the data sets under the columns titled Avg No of Recs and No of Members to size each data set accordingly. The value you provide for No of Members is the number of members you anticipate having in the top-level data set. The value you provide for Avg No of Recs is the number of records you anticipate having in each member in the top-level data set. These two values are used to calculate the space required for the PDS or PDS-E at the top of the promotion tree. While these values are used to size the data set initially, you should make the numbers large enough to accommodate the anticipated growth of the data set. Figure 10 displays the completed Types tab for this example project.

fault Types			Selected Typ	bes					
(EC	-		pe 🔺	Extended Type	Avg No of Recs	No of Members	Backup	IsaPack P	1
ENDEF			BINDDEF		20	100			
RAPHICS			CCDEF		10	10			
TML			COBOL		100	10			
PGLIB			DB2CLIST		15	5			
			DB2OUT		300	5			
DSI TR			DBRM		500	5			
PTI TR			GENDEF		10	5			
PEEBLD			LECDEF		10	5			
REEAR			LINKLIST		100	10			
2EEJAR			LIST		1000	10			
ZEELIST		1	LOAD		1000	5			
2EEWAR			OBJ		500	5			Edi <u>t</u>
AR.		- 1							
AVA		>>							Add
AVABLD									
AVACLAS		<							Comments
AVAJAK									
WALIST		11	1000						Validate
		~~							
TUTR									
CDEF									
NKLIST			and the second						
ST									
EDLIST									
10D									
DAD									
DADLIB									
AC									
ACLIB									
BJ									
BJLIB	-		1					•	
nas Sub Pr	oiects	Control Dat	ta Sets Types	Authorizations Gr	oups Group/Type	Language Definition	NPROM S	ervice User M	Macros User Exi
			(,)pes				1		

Figure 10: Define each data sets' parameters.

Other parameters that may be defined on this tab for each data set include Extended, Backup, IsaPack, Packfile and Reuse Days. The parameters available on this tab are defined below:

Extended Type: The name of a data set type in the project that contains members that should be included when the data set being created is processed by a language translator or architecture definition. For example, a COBOL data set type that contains COBOL source might have an EXTENDed type of COPY to include specific members from that data set type in the compilation.

The parameters Backup, IsaPack and Packfile are considered Package Backout flags and are mutually exclusive.

Backup: Check this check box if the members of this data set type are to be backed up during a promote. If you specify this check box, then at least one other data set type within the project must have the IsaPack option set, but they cannot be the same data set type. That is, the same data set cannot have both Backup and IsaPack set.

IsaPack: Check this check box if this data set type is to be used as the high level package file. That is, if this data set contains high level architecture definitions encompassing data sets whose contents are to be backed up, then select this option. As a result, when a promote is invoked on a high level architecture definition, all data set types referenced in the architecture definition are backed up.

Packfile: Use this check box to tell SCLM that this data set type contains the package file details. Only one data set type within a project can have the Packfile option set.

• **Reuse Days** (not visible in the screen shot): This option only activates when the Packfile option is checked. Reuse Days specifies the number of days a package can be reused. SCLM checks the date of a package before a promote occurs. If the package being promoted is younger than the Reuse Day value, then SCLM reuses the package. If this package is older than the Reuse Day value, then the package details member is deleted and a new one created.

Note: This project does not use the Package Backout features of SCLM.

Now that the data set types have been added to the project definition, select the tab titled **Groups** in the Project Editor.

3.4 Define the Groups

SCLM has a concept called a hierarchy where the different stages of an application's source code are compartmentalized within separate sets of group/type data sets. The different stages of an application's development are called groups. Groups within SCLM are organized in a hierarchical order with each group being subordinate to the group above it when there is more than one group. The application's source code is developed in the lowest level of the hierarchy, and the completed application is cut from the highest level of the hierarchy, also known as the root.

An SCLM project hierarchy can be thought of as an upside down tree or a pyramid, where there can be many different development groups, and only one root group. Figure 11 illustrates a simple hierarchy in which there are two development groups and only one path through to the root group called PRD0110.



Figure 11: A sample SCLM project hierarchy.

Using the example in Figure 11 above, application source code can promote from one of two different paths: one path begins with code originating in group DEV10110, and one path begins with code originating in group DEV20110.

When a project hierarchy is defined within SCLM, the movement of an application's source code is controlled by which group is higher in the hierarchy. Therefore, the code from DEV10110 cannot be promoted to group HLD0110 until it has been promoted into group TST0110. Developed code can be promoted to the next group. The word "promote" means to copy or move a member or a set of members from one group to the next group in the hierarchy. Each group can only promote members to the group to which it is subordinate and to which the authorization codes match. This link between groups is known as the promotion path.

Using this concept, the tab titled Groups within the Administrator Toolkit graphical user interface allows you to specify the parameters for each group independently, as shown below in Figure 12.

* RS22 V5.1	GA.San	idbox: CSJENNA [M	ain] 🛛								- 0
Group Name:	DEV 1	Edi	Group	Add Group	Remove	Group	<u>Comments</u>	Default <u>L</u> ay	out 🗆 Sh	io <u>w</u> in tabular form	
				PROD							
				P							
				1							
				TEST							
				Р							
			I	K							
ettings Sub P	Projects	Control Data Sets	Types	Authorizations	Groups	Group/Ty	pe Langua	e Definitions	NPROM Se	rvice User Macros	User Exits

Figure 12: Specify the groups to include in your project's hierarchy.

Using the workstation client, you may drag and drop the group boxes around the display to map the hierarchy of the project. Once you have created all the groups you want to include within your project, you can create the hierarchy by right-clicking the lower group, then right-clicking the upper group. An arrow will appear indicating the direction of promotion. Using the example in Figure 12 above, the group called TEST will have its code promoted to the group called PROD. To create a new group to add to the project, simply type its name in the field titled Group Name, as shown in Figure 12, then click the button titled **Add Group**.

In Figure 13 below, the project hierarchy is completed, and shows the entire direction of promotion for the project in this case study. When you hover the cursor over a group, a pop-up window displays the group's parameter values. They may be edited by either double-clicking the highlighted group, or by highlighting a group name, and clicking on the button titled Edit Group toward the top of the Project Editor.



Figure 13: The completed project hierarchy showing the direction of promotion.

In Figure 14 on page 17 below, the Groups tab can display the project's groups in a tabular form, making it easy to see each project's parameters at-a-glance. You may sort the project group data within the table by clicking on any of the column headers. To edit a group's parameters, you may either highlight a group within the list and click on the button titled Edit Group, or you may place your cursor within the field whose data you want to change, and click on the drop-down arrow to select a value from the available values in the drop-down list.

up Name:		Edi <u>t</u> Group	Add Group	Remove Gr	oup	nts Default La	ayout 🔽 Show	in tabular form
Add A <u>u</u> thCo	de Delete a ro	w						
iroup	Promotes	Backout	Alt control	Кеу	Restore	AuthCodes	Level 🔺	
PROD				\checkmark		P	0	
TEST	PROD	-				P	1	
DEV1	TEST			~		P	2	
DEV2	TEST			\checkmark		P	2	
							-	
							-	
							-	<u> </u>
								<u> </u>
								<u></u>

Figure 14: Tabular form displays each group's parameters in an easy-to-view list.

Now that the different data set types have been defined to the project, and the project groups have been defined to the project hierarchy, the Group/Type datasets can be selected and added to the project. In the Project Editor, click the tab titled **Group/Type** to continue.

3.5 Select the Group/Type Data Sets

Group/Type data sets are those data sets that consist of the project group name and the data set types added from the Types tab. Simply put, they are data sets whose names are derived by combining the project group name and data set type. On the Group/Type tab, all possible data set combinations are presented within a list for you to choose which ones to include within your project. The reason why you have the ability to pick and choose the group/type data set combinations to add to your project is because perhaps not all development groups are to develop assets in the same language. Perhaps one development group is to develop COBOL assets while another development group is to develop assets, as shown in Figure 15 on page 18.



Figure 15: Sample hierarchy illustrating different groups requiring different kinds of data sets.

In this example, group DEV10110 will contain COBOL code and would not require ASM type data sets allocated. Group DEV20110 will contain ASM code and would not require COBOL type data sets allocated. However, the groups that they promote into would require the same kinds of data sets allocated for the promotion to complete successfully.

On the Group/Types tab of the Project Editor, there are two frames listing different group/type data set combinations, as shown in Figure 16. The available Group/Type Combination data sets displayed in the frame on the left are created by pairing the defined groups on the Groups tab with the data set types selected on the Types tab. The frame on the right includes Group/Type Allocations that you select to be included in the project.

*RS22 V5.1 GA.Sandbox: CSJENNA [Main] X				- 0
"RS22 V5.1 GA.Sandbox: CSJENNA [Main] 23 Sgrt By Type Group/Type Combinations DEV1.BINDDEF DEV1.COBC DEV1.D82CLIST DEV1.D82QUT DEV1.BRM DEV1.LIST DEV1.LIST DEV1.LOBDEF DEV1.LIST DEV1.LIST DEV1.LOBJ DEV2.BINDDEF DEV2.COBOL DEV2.D82QUT DEV2.BINDDEF DEV2.COBOL DEV2.D82QUT DEV2.D82QUT DEV2.COBOL DEV2.LIST DEV2.LOBAD DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LIST DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LIST DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LOBJ DEV2.LIST DEV2.LOBJ PROD.COBEF PROD.COBCL PROD.COBCL DEV2.COBL PR	> < <	Group/Type Allocations DEV1.8INDDEF DEV1.COBF DEV1.COBOL DEV1.DB2CLIST DEV1.DB2OUT DEV1.DB2OUT DEV1.DB2DUT DEV1.DB2DUT DEV1.LGENDEF DEV1.LIST DEV1.LIST DEV1.LOAD DEV1.OBJ DEV2.BINDDEF DEV2.COBOL DEV2.DB2OUT DEV2.DB2OUT DEV2.DB2OUT DEV2.DB2OUT DEV2.DB2DUT DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LIST DEV2.LOAD DEV2.OBJ PROD.BINDDEF PROD.CCDEF PROD.COBOL PROD.DB20LIST		Edit Add Comments Model
PROD.COBOL PROD.DB2CLIST PROD.DB2OUT PROD.BRM PROD.SENDEF PROD.LECDEF PROD.LINKLIST		PROD.COBOL PROD.DB2CLIST PROD.DB2OUT PROD.DB2OUT PROD.BRM PROD.GENDEF PROD.LECDEF	-	
Settings Sub Projects Control Data Sets Types Authorization	ons Groups	Group/Type Language Definitions	NPROM Service User Ma	cros User Exits

Figure 16: Select the group/type combination data sets to include in your project.

You can pick and choose which data sets to include in your project based on your project's requirements by highlighting the group/type data set and clicking the single right arrow to move it to the right-hand frame. You may select multiple data sets at a time by holding the CTRL key while you click on each data set, then click on the single right arrow. You may optionally move all data sets from the left hand frame to the right-hand frame by clicking on the double right arrow.

If you are unsure if you have selected the correct Group/Type combination data sets within the hierarchy to accommodate lower-level development groups, you can use the Validate Project function from the SCLM option on the menu bar to notify you what data sets, if any, are missing within the hierarchy. You can then add those that are missing by selecting the data set from the list in the left-hand frame.

For this example, all group/type data sets will be used within the project. Therefore, clicking the double right arrow will move all group/type data set combinations to the right-hand frame.

No project is complete without language definitions that dictate how source code is translated into object modules, or load modules. To add language definitions to your project, click on the tab titled **Language Definitions** within the Project Editor.

3.6 Add Language Definitions

Language definitions are translators that process an application's source code from input to output, or to another form of input. For example, it can translate an application's source code into object code and listings, and then translate the object code into load modules. Because of their complex nature, new language definitions can be difficult to fine-tune. To help the user establish new projects, SCLM provides many language definitions that you can use in your project "as-is" or with minor modification.

You might also have custom languages or third-party languages you want to use within your project but getting them to run properly within SCLM might be difficult. To overcome these inhibitors, the Administrator Toolkit has a separate utility called the Language Definition Wizard that can assist users in creating a new language in less time and with fewer errors. Using context-sensitive fields and default parameters to help new SCLM administrators through the creation process, users are notified of conflicting parameters so a change can be made before the project is put into production.

On the Language Definition tab, new projects will have an empty list of languages. If you clone an existing project's definition, the list of languages copied from the existing project will be displayed.

In our example, the Language Definition tab will be blank. To the list, we will add languages from the SCLM macro library. Some will be copied "as-is" with no edits made to the language, and some will be copied, but edited for the purpose of our project.

When you click the button titled Add, the Language Definition Wizard is invoked and allows you to specify how you want to add a new language definition. As shown in Figure 17 below, you can add a language definition in one of three ways.

Create from an existing Language Definition Data Set: Select this radio button if you simply want to copy an existing language definition. If the option 'Create as is' is not checked, then a copy of the language definition is placed within your project's SOURCE data set, and you are allowed to edit its parameters. If the option 'Create as is' is checked, then the language definition remains in its original data set and a COPY statement is placed within your project's SOURCE data set in which the language resides. You will not be able to edit its parameters when 'Create as is' is selected.

Create from existing Language Definition JCL: If you have third party languages, or if you have existing JCL that translates an application source code from input to output, or to another form of input, use this option to create a Language Definition. The existing JCL is parsed to create a preliminary language definition in which you can then edit and tailor it for your project's needs.

Create by providing the Language Definition parameters: You can create a language definition from scratch by using the Language Definition Wizard to guide you.

🔯 Language Definition Wizard		
Language Definition		
Specify the method used to create the Language Definition.		10 citor
Creation Method		
Create from an existing Language Definition Data Set		Create as is
C Create from existing Language Definition <u>J</u> CL		
C Create by providing the Language Definition parameters		
Dataset name ISP.SISPMACS(FLM@ARCD)	Bro <u>w</u> se	
⑦ < Back Next >	Einish	Cancel
⑦ < Back Mext >	Einish	Cancel

Figure 17: Select the option you wish to use to create a Language Definition.

With the exception of the option 'Create as is', the Language Definition Wizard will guide you through the process of creating your language definition. Content-sensitive fields prevent you from entering conflicting parameters, helping you to understand why the parameters conflict and assisting you in resolving the conflict. Field-level help is available throughout the Administrator Toolkit, but becomes invaluable when you need additional information to help resolve a conflict.

In our example, the language FLM@ARCD, an architecture definition language, is being copied 'as-is' from the SCLM macro data set. Because you cannot edit any parameters from a language created 'as-is', the language definition is copied into the project definition but is referenced from its original data set. A message indicating a successful copy is displayed, as shown in Figure 18.

🛃 Info	rmation		×
į)	AUZ485I - La	anguage Definition was creat	ed successfully
		ОК	<u>D</u> etails >>

Figure 18: A message is returned when a language is successfully added to a project.

In our example, the following languages are added to the project: FLM@ARCD, FLM@BD2, FLM@BDO, FLM@L370, and FLM@2CO2. Languages FLM@L370 and FLM@2CO2 are edited to reflect changes that are needed for this specific case. To illustrate how the Language Definition Wizard assists users with editing language parameters, edits to language FLM@L370 are displayed below, beginning with Figure 19.

kanguage Definition Wizard	<u>_ ×</u>
Language Definition	
Specify the method used to create the Language Definition.	
Creation Method	
Create from an existing Language Definition Data Set	Create as is
C Create from existing Language Definition <u>J</u> CL	
C Create by providing the Language Definition parameters	
Dataset name AUZQA35.PROJDEFS.SOURCE(LE370) Browse	
	Cancel

Figure 19: Specify a language to copy, but edit the language to tailor it to your project.

You may copy a language from any data set, not just the SCLM-provided macro data set. Within the field titled Dataset Name, provide the data set name and member name that

contains the language you want to copy. Click the radio button next to the option titled 'Create from an existing Language Definition Data Set. Then click **Next**.

You may optionally search for the data set name by providing a partially qualified data set name and/or member name, and clicking the button titled Browse. When you do so, a window titled Dataset Selection Dialog will display, as shown in Figure 20, with a list of data sets whose name matches the pattern you specified. You can then click on the data set name to expand its member list, as shown in Figure 20 below. Simply select the member name that is the language definition you want to copy. Then click on **OK**.

🕵 SCLM Administrator Toolkit	×
Dataset Selection Dialog	
Select dataset here	
Data Set Name: ISP.SISPMACS	Browse
Member Name:	
E 🛃 ISP.SISPMACS	
@INDEX	
FLM@ARCD	
FLM@ASM	
FLM@ASMC	
FLM@ASMH	
FLM@BDO	
FLM@BD2	
FLM@BMS	
FLM@BOOK	
FLM@CC	
FLM@CCBE	-
Recall	
OK Cancel	<u>D</u> etails >>

Figure 20: Expand the data set name and select the member name to use.

When you select the data set and member name that contains the language definition you want to copy, you are returned to the main Language Definition Wizard panel. Notice that the field titled Dataset Name is completely filled in. Simply click **Next** to continue.

The parameters for the FLMLANGL macro are displayed for your review, as shown in Figure 21. You may edit any of the parameters that are displayed to tailor it to your project's requirements.

inguage Def Provide language	finition e definition parameters	s.	
Language Ident	tifier Definition (FLMLA	INGL)	
Langua <u>q</u> e:	LE370	Copy Book: LE370	
Description	370/LINKAGE EDIT	OR	
Version:	L370V2.0	Buffer Size:	
Member Limit:		Default CREF:	
Default Source:		Check Syslib:	•
Archdef Membe	r (ARCH)	Scope:	-
Compool <u>O</u> utpu	t (COMPOOL)	Allocate Syslib (ALCSYSLB)	
Editable Membe		Rebuild Dependents (DEPPRCS)	71
Editable Fiembe			
Encoding (ENCC			
Encoding (ENCC	DDE) (X)		
Encoding (ENCC	DDE) (x)	1	
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups Groups	DDE) (X)		
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups Groups	(FLMLRBLD)		
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups	DDE) (X)		
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups Groups <u>A</u> dd R	DDE) (X)		
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups Groups <u>A</u> dd R	DDE) (X)		
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups Groups <u>A</u> dd R <u>C</u> omments	DDE) (X)		
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups Groups <u>A</u> dd R Comments	DDE) (X)		
Encoding (ENCC Rebuild Groups Groups <u>A</u> dd R. Comments	DDE) (X)		

Figure 21: Make any necessary edits to the language definition to tailor it to your project.

Clicking **Next** will advance you to each of the macros and their corresponding parameters. In this example, the translator parameters will be edited. The Translator Summary window, as shown in Figure 22 on page 24, displays all translators that are defined within a language definition. Some languages have many different translators. However, the link-edit language definition only has a BUILD translator.

ED/370	BUILD	
		Up Down

Figure 22: The Translator Summary provides a list of translators defined within the language.

To make any necessary edits, simply highlight the translator within the list, and click the button titled **Edit**. A window titled Translator Parameters will display, allowing you to edit FLMTRNSL macro parameters within the BUILD translator, as shown in Figure 23 on page 25.

ranslator Pa Provide translate	or parameters.				
Translator Defin	ition (FLMTRNSL)				
Sunction:		BUTUD		ame:	LKED/370
Call Method:			<u>Compi</u>	le:	IEWL -
Step Label:			Good	RC:	0
ORDER:		3	▼ Task L	ibrary:	
lo Save Externa		, [Max G	and P.C (MRP.P.C.)	
logare Externe			Ha <u>v</u> C		
ersion (VERSIO	N)	164			
Override opt	tions (OPTFLAG)	Input List Processing	(INPLIST) PDS D	a <u>t</u> a	
aram Keyword:				•	
)ata Set Name:					
zere bet riemer		1			
Ontions:		(DCBS,MAP)			<u>^</u>
group.					*
FLMTCOND(i)		FLMTOPTS(z)			
Allocations (FLM	ALLOC)				
ІО Туре	DD Name	Key Ref			-
S	SYSLIN	INCL			
D	SYSIMOD	LOAD			
A	SYSLIB	LOND			Un
N					
0	SYSPRINT	LMAP			Down
N					
W	SYSUT1				
N					
N					-
Add Re	emove				

Figure 23: All FLMTRNSL macro parameters can be edited.

Within this example, the FLMALLOC data sets will be edited to modify the data sets associated with the SYSLIB data set. Highlight the SYSLIB data set within the frame titled Allocations, and click **Edit**. A window titled Data Set Allocation Dialog will allow you to edit the FLMALLOC macro parameters for the SYSLIB data set, as shown in Figure 24 on page 26.

Allocation Definition	s (FLMALLOC)	_		Laure en	
LO Type:	A	_	DD Name:	SYSLIB	
Keyword Ref:		•	Disposition:	SHR	-
Default Type(1):		-	Default Member:		
Record Format(z):		-	Block Size:		
Record Length:		-	Num Records:		
Dir Blocks(2):			Language:		
Ind <u>u</u> de:		-	Print:		Y
D <u>S</u> N Type:		-	Member(x):		
No Save RC(3):			Encoding(6)	Catalog	
HFS Path Options	ions (FLMCPYLB)				
Name (optional)	Data Set Name			Volume	Г
	CICS.SDFHLOAD				
	IGZ.COB2CICS				
	IGZ.COB2LIB				
	AMP.SAMPRUN1				
	AMP.SAMPMSG1				
	AMP.SAMPMSG1 PLI.PLIBASE				
	AMP.SAMPMSG1 PLI.PLIBASE PLI.SIBMBASE EDC SEDCBASE				
	AMP.SAMPMSG1 PLI.PLIBASE PLI.SIBMBASE EDC.SEDCBASE DSN.V710.SDSNI	OAD			
	AMP.SAMPMSG1 PLI.PLIBASE PLI.SIBMBASE EDC.SEDCBASE DSN.V710.SDSNL CRS.SELALMD	OAD			
	AMP.SAMPMSG1 PLI.PLIBASE PLI.SIBMBASE EDC.SEDCBASE DSN.V710.SDSNL CRS.SELALMD SYS1.LINKLIB	OAD			
1	AMP.SAMPMSG1 PLI.PLIBASE PLI.SIBMBASE EDC.SEDCBASE DSN.V710.SDSNL CRS.SELALMD SYS1.LINKJIB CEE.SCEELKED	OAD			

Figure 24: Edit the data sets concatenated within the FLMCPYLB macro.

In our example, the DB2 LOAD data set must be edited to reflect the correct version of DB2 that the project will be executed on. To edit a data set name within the list, highlight the data set, and click **Edit.** A pop-up window titled Copy Library Definitions will display allowing you to edit the data set name, as shown in Figure 25.

🛃 Copy Librar	y Definitions (FLMCPYLB)	×
Name (optional)		
Data Set Name	DSN.V910.SDSNLOAD	
Volume Serial		
	ОК	Cancel

Figure 25: Edit the Copy data set name as necessary.

When you are done editing the data set name, simply click **OK** to return to the Data Set Allocation Dialog to view your changes. Click on **OK** to continue editing the language definition. On the window titled Finish Language Definition, click **Finish** to complete the Language Definition Wizard, and return to the Language Definitions tab within the Project Editor, as shown in Figure 26.

T *RS22 V5.1 0	GA.Sandbox: CSJENNA	[Main] 🛛			
Language Definit	tions				
Name	Copybook	Library	Active		
ARCHDEF	FLM@ARCD	ISP.SISPMACS	Yes		
DB2CLIST	FLM@BD2	ISP.SISPMACS	Yes		
DB2OUT	FLM@BDO	ISP.SISPMACS	Yes		
LE370	LE370		Yes		
DB2COB2	FLM@2CO2		Yes		
					Switch Active
					Edit
					Add
					Rem <u>o</u> ve
					Comments
Settings Sub Pro	ojects Control Data Se	ets Types Authorizations Group	Group/Type Language Defin	itions NPROM Service User	Macros User Exits

Figure 26: The list of language definitions is displayed within a list.

Notice that languages LE370 and DB2COB2 are not referenced within a library, while the other three languages, such as ARCHDEF, are referenced in library ISP.SISPMACS. This is because the languages ARCHDEF, DB2CLIST and DB2OUT were created "as-is". Remember that creating a language "as-is" simply places a reference to the original language definition within your project. It does not copy the language definition to your project.

In this example, a copy of language LE370 is placed within this project's definition data set because an edit was made to the language. To prevent updates from being made directly to the ISP.SISPMACS library, where few users will have update authority, a copy is placed within the project's definition data set, and any usage of that language by the project's application source code will come from the copy that was placed within the project's definition data set.

3.7 Customize the DB2 CLIST

Because this sample project is a DB2 project, a DB2 CLIST must be included and customized as part of the project's definition. A DB2 CLIST is either a TSO CLIST or REXX exec procedure that allows you to BIND or FREE plans or packages for each DB2 program within your application.

Select the tab titled **Settings** within the Project Editor. The Administrator Toolkit can automatically create this CLIST for you using the button titled DB2 Management on the Settings tab, as shown in Figure 27.

*RS22 V5.1 GA.Sandbox: CSJENN	IA [Main] 🔀					- 8
Default Data Sets DB2 managem	ient					
Project Information						
Project Name: CSJEN	INA Alterna	ite Name:				
Externalize VSAM Allocations	Extern	alize VSAM Mem <u>b</u> er				
Miscellaneous FLMCNTRL Parameter	s					
DASD Unit: SYSAL	LDA VI <u>O</u> Un	it:	VIO			
Max VIO Records: 5000	Max lin	es per report page:	60			
Translator options override	<u>v</u> s/	AM RLS available				
Enable Member Locking	SCLM &	Administrator User Id				
Perform Cross Dependency Dyn	amic Updates					
Check Security Subsystem						
Settings Sub Projects Control Data	Sets Types Authorizations	Groups Group/Type	Language Definitions	NPROM Service	User Macros	User Exits

Figure 27: Automatically create the DB2 CLIST which drives the plan or package BIND process.

When you click on the button titled **DB2 Management**, a window titled DB2 BIND Parameter Defaults is displayed, as shown in Figure 28, which allows you to specify the parameters to use for BIND syntax.

🛃 SCLM Adı	ninistrator Toolkit	
DB2 BIND Parameter Defaults		
Provide DB2 BIND Parameter Defaults		
DB2 BIND pa	arameter defaults	
SUBSYS	Q91A	
OWNER	CSJENN	
ACTION	REP	
VALIDATE	BIND	
ISOLATION	RR	
EXPLAIN	NO	
QUALIFIER	CSJENN	
۲	OK Cancel	

Figure 28: Provide BIND syntax parameters for the DB2 applications within your project.
Enter all the required parameters for your DB2 program within the appropriate fields. For more information on the definition and usage of each of the DB2 BIND parameters, please refer to the chapter on the BIND PLAN and BIND PACKAGE syntax within the IBM DB2 Command Reference Manual for the appropriate version of DB2 for which you are creating BIND syntax. Click **OK** when all BIND parameters required for your DB2 program have been entered.

3.8 Build the Project

When a project's definition is complete, and you have specified all options you want to include within the project, the project then has to be built. Building a project simply means that all SCLM macro parameters and their values are assembled and linked into an executable load module. It is this executable load module that SCLM uses when you invoke SCLM to access your project's source code and other project-related assets. If no load module exists for your project, then SCLM issues an error message informing you that the project's load module cannot be found.

To build your project's definition in the Administrator Toolkit, click on the menu bar above, and select the option titled **SCLM**, while your project is still open within the Project Editor, as shown below in Figure 29.



Figure 29: Select the option to Build your project.

Select the option titled **Build/Rebuild Project** from the drop-down menu. When you do, a window titled Build Project Dialog will appear, as shown in Figure 30 on page 30. The checkbox next to the option titled Create/update project environment is selected by default.

Build Project Dialog
Project Sandbox: CSJENNA [Main]
Create/update project environment
Eatch mode
Edit source code
OK Cancel

Figure 30: Click OK to build your project's definition into a load module.

Click **OK** to begin automatically building your project's load module. Within the lower-right hand side of the application window is a status indicator, as shown below in Figure 31. As the project is built, the status indicator increases providing you information on the tasks' progress.

RS22 V5.1 GA.Sandbox: CSJENNA [Main] 🔀	88
Default Data Sets DB2 management	
Project Name: CSJENNA Alternate Name:	
Externalize VSAM Allocations Externalize VSAM M	iember
Miscellaneous FLMCNTRL Parameters	
DASD Unit: SYSALLDA VIO Unit:	VIO
Max VIO Records: 5000 Max lines per repor	t page: 60
Iranslator options override	able
Enable Member Lodging SCLM Administrator	User Id
Perform Cross Dependency Dynamic Updates	
Check Security Subsystem	
Sattings Sub Projects Control Data Sate Types Authorizations Crowns C	oun/Tune Language Definitions NDOM 5 - in Uter Marros Liner Evite
Securga Jour Hojecia Control Data Seta Trypes Autonizations Groups G	Building project San Main]: (57%)
	Dunung project Santandarija (37%)

Figure 31: The status indicator provides a progress report of the current task.

When the project build has completed, a message will display along with any additional information related to the building of the project, as shown below in Figure 32.



Figure 32: Messages are displayed within a pop-up window with additional information.

Clicking on the button titled Details will result in expanding the Information window to display additional information about the message. Click **OK** to close the informational message window.

Troubleshooting: Should an error be returned during any task, the task is written to the Reports node within the Remote Systems view, as discussed in this document in the subsection titled A Brief Introduction. It is these reports that Product Support will request when opening a PMR with IBM for diagnosis.

3.9 Create a Project Filter

In order to view your newly created project within the list of projects in the Remote Systems View, you must create a Project Filter whose pattern matches the name of the project you just created. To begin creating a project filter, right click on the node titled **Editable Sandboxes** within the Remote Systems view, as shown in Figure 33.

	0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000
🔆 SCLM Administrator Toolkit - IBM Software Configuration and Library Manager Admi	nistrato
File Edit Navigate Search Project Run Window Help	
] 📸 • 🐘 💩 💁 • 🚀 • ½ → ₩ → ♥۵ ♦ • → •	
😰 🔯 SCLM Administrator Toolkit	
Remote Systems 🖾 🖓 🗖	
🖭 📲 New Connection	
😟 😴 Local	
E - B RS22 V5.1 GA	
🗄 📆 Files	
- 🗔 Shells	
É-∳ SCLM	
EAC	
Editable Sandbox	
🕀 🖶 Filter: AUZ* [New 🎦 🔂 Project Filter	
Go To SCLM Project	
E - Filter: AUZ* [A Refrech	
E Reports	
	000000000

Figure 33: Create a project filter to view your newly created project.

An additional menu will display providing additional functionality. Select the option titled **New**. Then select **Project Filter**. When the window titled New SCLM Project Filter is displayed, provide a fully-qualified project name, or a partially qualified pattern using an asterisk as a wild card character, as shown below in Figure 34.

🔀 SCLM Administrator Toolkit		×
New SCLM Project filter		
Define parameters here		
Project filter CSJENN*		
(?)	OK	Cancel

Figure 34: Provide the project filter criteria.

In this case study, the new project name was CSJENNA. To view a list of projects whose names match the specified criteria, an asterisk was specified as a wild card character. As a result, all projects whose name matches the specified criteria will be displayed when the project filter is expanded. Click **OK** when you have completed entering the project filter criteria.

Once you have created a new project filter, the node titled Editable Sandboxes must be refreshed to see the changes made to the available project filters. **Right click** the node Editable Sandboxes. Then click **Refresh**, as shown below in Figure 35.

🖉 Remote Systems 🛛		
€ ← → 🕼 🔒	¢\$ĵ	▽
 New Connection Local RS22 V5.1 GA Files Sclm SCLM SCLM SCLM SCLM Go To Go To Refresh Reports 		

Figure 35: Refresh the node to view the new project filter.

When the node Editable Sandboxes is refreshed, the project filters are displayed, as shown below in Figure 36. Click on the **plus sign** ('+') next to the project filter to expand the filter and view the list of projects whose name matched the filter criteria.



Figure 36: Expand the new project filter to see all projects that match the filter name.

In this case study, there are two projects that match the project filter criteria; the project named CSJENNB was a pre-existing project that is not covered within this case study. Project CSJENNA is the project sandbox in which our edits were made. However, the real project is called CSJENN. Remember that when we were initially creating the project, we named the project CSJENN, while the sandbox was called CSJENNA. Refer to the section within this document titled Create a new project on page 3 to review the steps we took to create the project and its corresponding sandbox.

The icon next to Project CSJENNA has two small squares; one yellow and one blue. This icon means that CSJENNA is a sandbox project, and the project name within parenthesis is the main project, CSJENN. Remember that a sandbox is simply a project contained within a separate set of libraries from the main project, which allows you to test and tweak the sandbox project without affecting the main project.

The icon next to project CSJENNB is a blue square, which means this project is being actively used within SCLM.

The icon next to project AUZQA00 is a blue square with a small pencil. This project is under the node titled Deployed Projects, which means it is actively used in production, but is editable.

Now that the project CSJENNA has been successfully built, application source code from another project can be copied, or migrated, into the project. In this case study, we will migrate a DB2 program into this project's group/Type data sets for use in our project.

3.10 Migrate Project Assets

Software assets can be easily migrated into an SCLM project from existing libraries using the Migration Wizard or from remote systems using the Remote Migration Wizard. The Migration Wizard and Remote Migration Wizard guide you through migrating assets into your project by using content-sensitive fields and field-level help. Assets, including those with long file names, can be migrated into SCLM projects and the corresponding accounting data is automatically updated for each asset migrated into your project.

Migrating assets allows you to use application source code from another project that might contain a function your product has, or you can copy code from non-SCLM-managed libraries into an SCLM-managed project. These are just two examples of why migrating assets into a project is sometimes necessary. Utilizing the Migration Wizard in the Administrator Toolkit helps ensure the assets are migrated correctly, and automatically updates project control files, such as the accounting and auditing files.

To invoke the Migration Wizard, right click the project into which you want to migrate assets. When the pop-up menu is displayed, select the option titled Migration Wizard, as shown below in Figure 37.



Figure 37: Right click your project to navigate to the Migration Wizard.

When the window titled Migration Wizard is displayed, it will initially be blank, as shown below in Figure 38. You may specify as many assets to migrate at one time only if they will use the same language definition.

Migration Wizard ssets to Migrate elect members here					× □
elected members: Data Set Name	Member name				<u>A</u> dd <u>R</u> emove
2		< Back	Next >	Finish	Cancel

Figure 38: Click the button Add to add an asset to the list.

Click the button titled Add on the right-hand side of the window. A window titled Dataset Selection Dialog will display allowing you to specify the file that contains the assets you want to migrate. You may partially specify the data set name using an asterisk ('*') as a wild card character, as shown below in Figure 39 on page 36. Likewise, you may fully qualify the data set name and optionally its member name.

Click the button titled Browse to search for the data set name if you wild carded the data set name.

SCLM Admi	nistrator Too	lkit		<u>></u>
)ataset Sele	ection Dialo	g		
Select dataset	here			
ata Set <u>N</u> ame:	RSTEST.AUZ.	TEST.*	 	Browse
lember Name:				
	,			
Recall				
Recall				

Figure 39: Specify the data set that contains the assets you want to migrate.

The Migration Wizard will search for all PDS data sets on the host on which your project resides. The data sets that match the specified data set name or pattern are displayed in the bottom frame. Select the data set that contains the assets you want to migrate, as shown in Figure 40.

🔯 SCLM Administrator Toolkit		×
Dataset Selection Dialog Select dataset here		1
Data Set Name: RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.*		Browse
Member Name:	TASET WITH. VERY.LONG.NAME 1	<u> </u>
Hartest AUZ. TEST. D82CLIST Hartest Rest. AUZ. TEST. EXEC Hartest Rest. AUZ. TEST. ISPGLIB Hartest Rest. AUZ. TEST. ISPPLIB Hartest Rest. AUZ. TEST. JSPLIB Hartest Rest. AUZ. TEST. JSPLIB	(Migrated)	-1
Recall	ОК Сал	cel

Figure 40: Select the data set that contains the assets to migrate.

When you click on the plus sign ('+') next to the highlighted data set name to expand the member list, all members contained within the data set are displayed, as shown in Figure 41.

🔀 SCLM Administrator Toolkit	×
Dataset Selection Dialog Select dataset here	1
Data Set Name: RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.*	Browse
RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.ARCHDEF RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.ARM RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.ASM RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.BLANK.DATASET RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.COBOL AUZDBSEL AUZDBSEL GQMP 1 DINESLCT MREST01	×
Recall 0	▼ OK Cancel Details >>

Figure 41: Select the members you want to include in the list.

Select multiple members using the CTRL key and the left mouse button. Click **OK** when you have completed selecting the assets you want to migrate. The Migration Wizard window is redisplayed, listing all assets you selected to migrate, as shown below in Figure 42.

ssets to Migrate		
elect members here		
elected members:		
Data Set Name	Member name	
RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.COBOL	AUZDBSEL	
RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.COBOL	AUZDBSL2	
RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.COBOL	MREST01	
RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.COBOL	MTEST01	
RSTEST.AUZ.TEST.COBOL	STATE7	
		Add
		<u></u>
		Remove
	1	1
2)	< Back Next >	Finish Cancel

Figure 42: The selected assets to migrate are listed within the Migration Wizard.

Click **Next** when you are ready to continue.

Within the window titled Migrate Asset Options, specify the group into which to migrate the assets. Remember that assets can only be migrated into the lowest level group within the project hierarchy. In this case study, groups DEV1 and DEV2 are the lowest level groups within the project hierarchy, so only those two groups will appear in the selection list when you click the drop-down arrow.

Next, specify which data set type to migrate the assets into. For example, if the data set you migrated assets from was a COBOL data set, you would then migrate the assets into a similar data set. Use the drop-down arrow within the Type field to select a data set from the list of types defined to this project. In this case study, the assets will be stored in the project's COBOL data set.

The language field specifies which language definition should be used on these objects when building the assets. Use the drop-down arrow within the Language field to select a language definition to use with all assets.

Note: Because only one language definition can be used when migrating assets en masse, you must migrate assets requiring different language definitions separately.

The default authorization code is used. The assets will be conditionally migrated, which means that if there is a problem during the migration process, the migration will stop. The SCLM default date and time stamp will be used for these assets. Click **Next** when you are ready to migrate the assets.

K Migration Wizard					-OX
Migrate Asset Options					10111010010101000101
Enter the migration options for the	selected members.				- Contra
	-				
Migrate members into Group:	DEV1	-			
Migrate members into <u>Type</u> :	COBOL	•			
Migrate members into Sub Project:		~			
Language:	DB2COB2	•			
Authorization Code:	P	•			
Change Code: (optional)					
M <u>o</u> de:	Conditional	•			
Migration Date and Time					
Use SCLM default date and tim	e				
C Enter a date and time	me				
Date: (VVVV/MM/DD)	Time: [HH]	MM-551			
Date [[[]]	rine. (m.	aninaoj j			
0		< <u>B</u> ack	Next >	Einish	Cancel

Figure 43: Specify the options to use to migrate the assets.

SCLM migration services are called, and the Administrator Toolkit registers each asset within the accounting and auditing data sets.

When the migration is complete, a report is returned for your review, as shown in Figure 44. A return code is issued for each asset that was migrated into the project. Click **Finish** to complete the migration process and exit the Migration Wizard.

🔀 Migration Wizard			
Migration Wizard Repor	rt		
Press the Finish button to exit	t.		10
Migration Report			
FLM32101 - MIGRATION FLM06501 - TRANSLATOR FLM07107 - SAVE SUCCE FLM32401 - MIGRATION 	UTILITY INITIATED - 3 R RETURN CODE FROM === EEDED FOR MEMBER AUZDE UTILITY COMPLETED - 3	11:47:17 ON 2009/02/09 => SCLM COBOL PARSE ==== BSEL AT 11:47:18, CODE: 0 11:47:18 ON 2009/02/09 D LIBRARY MANAGER (SCLM)	× 0
··· ··· ··· ···	M I G R A T 2009/02/03 PROJECT: ALTERNATE: GROUP: TYPE:	E REPORT 9 11:47:18 CSJENNA CSJENNA DEV1 COBOL	
	MEMBER: AUTHCODE: LANGUAGE: CHANGE CODE:	AUZDBSEL P DB2COB2	 <u>v</u>
0	[< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Eir	ish Cancel

Figure 44: The Migration Report is returned for your review.

Once your project definition is complete, you have built an executable load module, and have optionally migrated any assets into your project, you must then build architecture definitions.

3.11 Create Architecture Definition

Architecture Definitions tell SCLM how pieces of a project's source code fit together and are crucial to the structure of a project. You can automatically generate SCLM architecture definitions from an existing load module or parse existing JCL into an architecture definition. A manual option for creating architecture definitions from scratch also exists.

For this case study, multiple architecture definitions will be created for the new DB2 project. A few different kinds of architecture definitions are required for a DB2 project. You will need something called a BINDDEF architecture definition to complete the DB2 binds, a CCDEF architecture definition to control the compilation of your source code, and a LECDEF

architecture definition that controls the link-edit process. There is also a high-level architecture definition that contains all subsequent DB2 architecture definitions. The high-level architecture definition is built within SCLM, which in turn causes all included architecture definitions to get built, and BINDS to be run, resulting in an executable DB2 program. Remember that a 'build' is the process in which raw source code is assembled or compiled and link-edited to create an executable program.

The Administrator Toolkit can automate this entire process through the Architecture Definition Wizard, assisting you in creating the specific architecture definitions required for your project. Using content-sensitive fields and drop-down boxes, you can easily create any kind of architecture definition with less mistakes, resulting in a usable architecture definition.

To invoke the Architecture Definition Wizard, right-click the project on which the architecture definitions are to be created. When the pop-up menu is displayed, select the option titled Architecture Definitions, as shown below in Figure 45.



Figure 45: Invoke the Architecture Definition Wizard.

When the window titled Architecture Definition is displayed, you must first select which type of architecture definition to create from the bottom left-hand frame titled Create new Architecture Definition, as shown below in Figure 46 on page 41. In this case study, the radio button titled DB2 Architecture Definition is selected.

By default, the ArchDef Group and ArchDef Type fields are defaulted, but their values may be changed by clicking on the drop-down arrow within each field and selecting a new value. However, when you are creating architecture definitions for a DB2 project, and you have selected the radio button titled Create new Architecture Definition, then only the field titled ArchDef Group may be changed. This is because the Architecture Definition Wizard will automatically present you with the appropriate windows that will be used to create the different types of architecture definitions required for a DB2 project, and it ignores the field titled ArchDef Type.

SCLPT Administrator Toolkit		2
Architecture Definition Use this dialog to create or edit Architecture D	Definition.	
ArchDef Group DEV1 Arc	hDef Type CCDEF 💌	Update
Architecture Definition List		
Create new Architecture Definition	Edit/View Architecture Defini	ition
Within a text editor DB2 Architecture Definition	C HL Architecture Definition	
C HL Architecture Definition	in a new analysis of the benning	The second of the second s
C From an existing Load Module(s)		
C From an existing Load Module(s) C From an existing <u>I</u> CL		
From an existing Load Module(s) From an existing LCL Create	Edit	⊻jew
From an existing Load Module(s) From an existing lCL Create Migrate Options Define C	<u>Edit</u>	<u>V</u> iew
From an existing Load Module(s) From an existing LCL Create Migrate Options Define C Manage DB2 CLIST	opy Candidates Generate C	<u>V</u> iew Copy <u>S</u> tatements
From an existing Load Module(s) From an existing LCL Create Migrate Options Define C Manage DB2 CLIST	opy Candidates Generate C	<u>V</u> iew Copy <u>S</u> tatements

Figure 46: Select which kind of Architecture Definition to create.

Click the button titled Create when you are ready to create DB2 architecture definitions.

A window titled Create DB2 Architecture Definition will appear, as shown below in Figure 47, allowing you to specify the name of each type of architecture definition that will be created, and the data set type in which to store each kind of architecture definition.

reate DB2 Architecture Definition Create a new DB2 Architecture Definition.		
Architecture Definition Group:	DEV1	
Program Name	AUZDBSEL	
Source Program Type	COBOL	•
Architecture Definition Language	ARCHDEF	•
DBRM Type	DBRM	•
H. Architecture Definition	-	
HL Architecture Definition Name	AUZDBSEL	
HL Architecture Definition Type	GENDEF	-
DB2 Bind Architecture Definition		
DB2 Bind Architecture Definition Name	AUZDBSEL	
DB2 Bind Architecture Definition Type	BINDDEF	•
LEC Architecture Definition		
LEC Architecture Definition Name	AUZDBSEL	
LEC Architecture Definition Type	LECDEF	•
CC Architecture Definition		
CC Architecture Definition Name	AUZDBSEL	
CC Architecture Definition Type	CCDEF	•
0	Back Next > Einish	Cancel

Figure 47: Specify the name and data set type for each kind of architecture definition.

Provide the following required information within this window to create each kind of architecture definition for your DB2 project.

- Architecture Definition Group: This field displays the group you specified on the previous window for which to create the architecture definition and cannot be edited.
- **Program Name:** The DB2 program for which the architecture definition is being created.
- **Source Program Type:** The data set type where the DB2 program can be located.
- Architecture Definition Language: The language to use to create this architecture definition.
- **DBRM Type:** The data set type where the DB2 DBRM should be placed.

- **HL Architecture Definition:** This section lists the name and type of the high level architecture definition. The high level architecture definition refers to the lower-level architecture definitions.
 - HL Architecture Definition Name: Provide up to an 8-character name to call the new high level architecture definition.
 - HL Architecture Definition Type: Specify the data set type where the high level architecture definition should be stored.
- **DB2 Bind Architecture Definition:** The BIND architecture definition tells SCLM how and where to run DB2 BIND commands for the DB2 program referenced in the field Source Program Name.
 - DB2 Bind Architecture Definition Name: Provide up to an 8-character name to call the new DB2 BIND architecture definition.
 - DB2 Bind Architecture Definition Type: Specify the data set type where the DB2 BIND architecture definition should be stored.
- **LEC Architecture Definition:** The link-edit control architecture definition tells SCLM where to put the output from running a link-edit, what language to use when running the link-edit and where to store the listing.
 - LEC Architecture Definition Name: Provide up to an 8-character name to call the new link-edit control architecture definition.
 - LEC Architecture Definition Type: Specify the data set type where the link-edit control architecture definition should be stored.
- **CC Architecture Definition:** The Compilation Control architecture definition tells SCLM where to put the object module and where it can find the DB2 program.
 - CC Architecture Definition Name: Provide up to an 8-character name to call the new compilation control architecture definition
 - CC Architecture Definition Type: Specify the data set type where the compilation control architecture definition should be stored.

When you have completed specifying the DB2 architecture definition information, click **Next** to continue.

The first kind of architecture definition that will be created is the CCDEF architecture definition. Remember that this kind of architecture definition controls the compilation of the source code for the specified DB2 program. Some values will already be filled in for you based on values you previously defined, as shown in Figure 48. Use the drop-down arrows within the empty fields to specify blank values.

R.					
Create CC Architect Specify Architecture Def	ture Definition	s			
CC Architecture Definit	on				
Source Program TYPE	COBOL				•
Object Name	AUZDBSEL				
Object TYPE	ОВЈ				•
DBRM Name	AUZDBSEL				
Listing Name	AUZDBSEL				
Listing TYPE	LIST				
0		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	Einish	Cancel

Figure 48: Create the Compilation Control architecture definition.

Specify the values for the fields Object Name and Listing Type. Descriptions for the fields on this window follow:

- **Source Program Type:** This value should already be filled in for you as it was specified on a previous window. This is the data set type where the DB2 program can be located.
- **Object Name:** This is the name of the object module to be created when SCLM builds the DB2 architecture definition. Its value is defaulted to the same name as the Source Program name provided on the previous window.
- **Object Type Name:** This is defaulted to the data set type where the object module is stored.
- **DBRM Name:** This value was defaulted to the same name as the Source Program Name provided on a previous window. The DBRM module is given this value and stored in the DBRM data set type.
- Listing Name: This value was defaulted to the same name as the Source Program Name. It is the member name of the listing that gets created when SCLM builds the compilation control architecture definition.
- Listing Type: Specify the data set type where you want the listing stored. The listing is created as a result of SCLM building the compilation control architecture definition.

When you have completed filling in the required values on this panel, click Next.

The second kind of architecture definition to be created is the LECDEF architecture definition. Remember that this kind of architecture definition controls how source code is link-edited. Some values will already be filled in for you based on values you previously defined, as shown in Figure 49. Use the drop-down arrows within the empty fields to specify blank values.

R					
Create LEC Architect	ure Definitio	ons			
Specify Architecture Definit	ions parameter	s.			
LEC Architecture Definition	n				
CC Archdef Name	AUZDBSEL				
CC Archdef Type	CCDEF				•
Linkage Editor Language	LE370				-
Load Module Name	AUZDBSEL				
Load Module TYPE	LOAD				•
Lin <u>k</u> map Name	AUZDBSEL				
Link map TYPE					•
	GENDEF				
	LINKLIST	inanan inana ana			
	LOAD				•
0		< Back	Nexts	Finish	Cancel
U		< Dary	Mext >	Dusu	Cancer

Figure 49: Create the Link Edit Control architecture definition.

Specify values for the fields Load Module Type, and Link Map Type. Descriptions for the fields on this window follow:

- **CC Archdef Name:** The name of the compilation control architecture definition you specified on the initial DB2 architecture definition panel.
- **CC Archdef Type:** This is the data set type where the CC architecture definition is located, and was specified on a previous panel.
- Linkage Editor Language: This is the language to be used to process the link-edit control architecture definition and was specified on a previous panel.
- Load Module Name: The load module name is defaulted to the same name as the Source Program Name specified on a previous panel. This is the load module to be created as a result of building the link-edit control architecture definition.
- Load Module Type: Specify the data set type where the load module is to be stored when it is created.

- Link Map Name: A link map gets generated as a result of building the LEC architecture definition. By default this value is the same name as the Source Program Name specified on a previous panel.
- Link Map Type: Specify the data set type where the link map is to be stored when it is created.

When you have completed filling in the required values on this panel, click Next.

The third kind of architecture definition is the BINDDEF, which is the DB2 architecture definition that is used when executing the BINDs for your DB2 program. Some values will already be filled in for you based on values you previously defined, as shown in Figure 50. Use the drop-down arrows within the empty fields to specify blank values.

•
•
-
-

Figure 50: Create the DB2 BIND architecture definition.

Specify values for the fields Output Type and Language. Descriptions for the fields on this window follow:

- DB2CLIST Type: The data set type where the DB2CLIST is generated for the BIND commands to use when the DB2 BIND architecture definition is built within SCLM. By default, the value is DB2CLIST.
- **DBRM Name:** This value is the name of the DBRM that gets created as a result of building the DB2 architecture definitions in SCLM and was defaulted to the same value as the Source Program Name specified on a previous window.
- **Output Name:** The name of the member to be created and stored in the data set type referenced in Output type. By default it is the same value as the Source Program Name provided on a previous window.

- **Output Type:** Specify the data set type where the output of the DB2 bind architecture definition is stored.
- Language: Specify the language to be used to run the DB2 BIND architecture definition.

When you have completed filling in the required values on this panel, click **Next**. A window titled Create HL Architecture Definitions is displayed listing those values you supplied to create the CCDEF, the BINDDEF and the LECDEF, as shown in Figure 51. Remember that a High Level architecture definition simply references those architecture definitions required to create an executable DB2 program. It is this architecture definition that you execute a Build against to create load modules.

The values on this window are filled in with the values you specified when creating each kind of architecture definition, and should not be changed. If you must change one of the architecture definitions' values, click the button titled **Back** to navigate to the specific architecture definition whose values you want to change.

8						
reate HL Architectur	e Definitior	IS				
Specify Architecture Definitio	ons parameters	s.				
HL Architecture Definition						
CC ARCHDEF Name	AUZDBSEL					
CC ARCHDEF TYPE	CCDEF					•
DB2 Bind ARCHDEF Name	AUZDBSEL					
DB2 Bind ARCHDEF TYPE	BINDDEF					•
LEC ARCHDEF Name	AUZDBSEL					
LEC ARCHDEF TYPE	LECDEF					•
2		< Back	Next >	Fir	ish I	Cancel
			<u></u>			

Figure 51: Create the High Level architecture definition.

Click **Next** to continue. Each kind of architecture definition is presented to you in an editor window in the order in which they were created.

The Compilation Control architecture definition is displayed first, as shown below in Figure 52.

R					
Architecture Defin Press Finish to save cha	ition Editor anges and exit.				
DB2 CC Architectu	ure Definition T	ext			
Line 1	Column 1	Insert			
	+2+-	3	+4	+5	+6+
SINC AUZDBSEL (COBOL				
OBJ AUZDBSEL O	BJ				
LIST AUZDBSEL	LIST				
0		c Dards	L Neut 2	1 card	1 cmm 1
Ø		< Back	<u>w</u> ext >	Eluisu	

Figure 52: The compilation control architecture definition is returned for your review.

Click **Next** through each architecture definition to continue. The Link-Edit Control Architecture Definition is displayed next, as shown in Figure 53.

R					
Architecture	Definition Editor				
Press Finish to sa	ive changes and exit.				
DB2 LEC Arch	itecture Definition	n Text			
Line 1	Column 1	Insert			
1-	+2+	+	4	+5	+6+
INCL AUZDBS	SEL CCDEF				
LKED LESTU	SET TOND				
IMAD AUZDBS	SEL LOAD				
PARM MAP, XF	XEF DIMEDIDI				
CMD INCLUI	DE SYSLIB (DSNEI	.I)			
C. C		Sec. Sec.			
0		< <u>B</u> ack	Next >	Einish	Cancel

Figure 53: The link edit control architecture definition is returned for your review.

Click **Next** through each architecture definition to continue.

The Bind Architecture Definition is displayed next, as shown in Figure 54. This architecture definition executes the DB2 CLIST (displayed on the next page) which binds the program packages when the high level architecture definition is built in SCLM.

R					_ 🗆 🗙
Architecture De Press Finish to save	efinition Editor e changes and exit.				
DB2 Bind Archi	itecture Definitio	on Text			
Line 1	Column 1	Insert 	4+-	5+	6+
SINC AUZDBSE OUT3 AUZDBSE	L DB2CLIST				
0		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	Einish	Cancel

Figure 54: The DB2 bind architecture definition is returned for your review.

Click **Next** through each architecture definition to continue.

The DB2 CLIST is displayed for your review and should not be edited. The DB2 CLIST is run to execute the binds when the DB2 Bind Architecture Definition (BINDDEF) is built in SCLM. The syntax statement %INCLUDE references the DBRM name specified within the BINDDEF, as shown in Figure 55.

&	
Architecture Definition Editor	
Press Finish to save changes and exit.	
DB2 Package Bind CLIST Text	
<pre>Line 1 Column 1 Insert +1</pre>	6+ ****** ted ****** ******
? ≤ Back Next > Einish C	ancel

Figure 55: The DB2 CLIST executes the binds when the DB2 Bind Architecture Definition is built in SCLM.

Click **Next** through each architecture definition to continue.

The high level architecture definition is displayed last, as shown in Figure 56. It simply references all lower-level architecture definitions, to include the CCDEF, the BINDDEF, and the LECDEF. When building a DB2 project's assets in SCLM, a build is done against the high level architecture definition, causing all assets referenced within the lower level architecture definitions to be built. Remember that the process of building an asset in SCLM takes raw source code and turns it into executable programs.

X									
Architecture Def Press Finish to save c	inition Edi hanges and	itor exit.							
DB2 HL Architec	ture Defi	nition 1	ſext						
Line 1	Column	1	Insert						
1	-+2-	+-	3	-+	4	-+	5	+	6+
INCL AUZDBSEL	CCDEF								
INCL AUZDBSEL	BINDDE	E.							
INCL AUZDBSEL	LECDEF								
				67,67,6			66666	5757575	
(2)			< Back	Г	Next >		Finish	1	Cancel
~				_					

Figure 56: The High Level architecture definition is returned for your review.

Click **Next** to continue.

When the window titled Architecture Definition Migration Options is displayed, as shown in Figure 57, use the drop-down arrows where appropriate to specify values for the following parameters:

- Architecture Definition Language: Specify the language with which to create the architecture definitions. This language will be used when building the high level architecture definition. This parameter is required. There is no default.
- **Authorization Code:** Specify the authorization code defined in the project to use when building the assets named in this architecture definition. This parameter is required.
- Change Code: Specify up to an 8 character change code to use to indicate the reason for an update or modification to a member controlled by SCLM. This parameter is optional.
- Mode: Specify how SCLM is to proceed if an error is encountered. This parameter is required. The default is Conditional, which will stop the create process if there are any warnings or errors.

R		<u>_ </u>
Architecture Definition Mig Provide Migration Options and pre-	pration Options ss Finish to Save Architecture Definition(s).	
Architecture Definition Sub Project	:	-
Architecture Definition Language:	ARCHDEF	•
Authorization code	P	•
C <u>h</u> ange code		
Mo <u>d</u> e	C	
0	< Back Mext > Einish	Cancel

Figure 57: Specify the parameters with which to create the architecture definitions.

Click Finish to create the architecture definitions. A message will be returned when the architecture definitions have been created, as shown in Figure 58.



Figure 58: Informational messages are returned about the create process.

Clicking on the button titled Details will result in expanding the Information window to display additional information about the message. Click **OK** to close the informational message window and return to the Architecture Definition Wizard.

Troubleshooting:	Should an error be returned during any task, the task is written to the
	Reports node within the Remote Systems view, as discussed in this
	document in the subsection titled A Brief Introduction. It is these reports
	that Product Support will request when opening a PMR with IBM for
	diagnosis.

You may view and optionally edit any architecture definitions that have been created for your project by using the Architecture Definition Wizard. On the window titled Architecture Definition, specify the ArchDef Group and ArchDef Type that contains the architecture definition you want to view. Click **Update** to display all architecture definitions within the group/Type data set.

In this example, the group/Type data set DEV1.CCDEF is displayed, as shown in Figure 59. Since there is only one within that group/Type data set, only one appears within the window.

🕵 SCLM Administrator Toolkit	×
Architecture Definition	
Use this dialog to create or edit Architecture De	finition.
ArchDef <u>G</u> roup DEV1 Arch	Def Type CCDEF _ Update
Architecture Definition List	
CSJENNA.DEV1.CCDEF(AUZDBSEL)	
Create new Architecture Definition	
© Within a text editor	Within a text editor
DB2 Architecture Definition	C HL Architecture Definition
C HL Architecture Definition	
 From an existing Load Module(s) 	
C From an existing JCL	
Create	Edit View
Migrate Options Define Co	py Candidates Generate Copy Statements
Manage DB2 CLIST	
0	Close

Figure 59: View or edit architecture definitions.

Highlight the architecture definition within the list, and either click the button titled Edit to make changes to the definition, or click the button titled View to simply view the definition.

Click the button titled **Close** to exit the Architecture Definition Wizard.

3.12 Test the project

Once you have created architecture definitions within the Administrator Toolkit, you can then test your project within SCLM to ensure the project definition you have defined will function correctly before deploying the project into production. To test your project, you can simply build

and promote the high level architecture definition that was created in the previous section. This will produce a load module that can be executed as a program.

To build the high level architecture definition for the new project, invoke SCLM, then provide the project name and development group, as shown in Figure 60. Select option **3** to invoke the Utilities panel. Press **Enter** to continue.

Option ===> <u>3</u>	SCLM Main Menu
Enter one of the	following options:
1 View	ISPF View or Browse data
2 Edit	Create or change source data in SCLM databases
3 Utilities	Perform SCLM database utility/reporting functions
4 Build	Construct SCLM-controlled components
5 Promote	Move components into SCLM hierarchy
6 Command	Enter TSO or SCLM commands
6A Easy Cmds	Easy SCLM commands via prompts
7 Sample	Create or delete sample SCLM project
A SCLM Admin	Maintaining SCLM administrators
X Exit	Terminate SCLM
SCLM Project Cont	rol Information:
Project	. <u>csjenna</u> (Project high-level qualifier)
Alternate	(Project definition: defaults to project)
Group	. <u>dev1</u> (Defaults to TSO prefix)

Figure 60: Specify the SCLM project whose assets you want to access.

On the panel titled SCLM Utilities Menu, select option **1** to access project assets, as shown in Figure 61. Press **Enter**.

		SCLM Utilities Menu
op.	1 tion ===> 1	
1	Library	Browse, edit, view, delete, build, or promote SCLM controlled members, update member authorization codes and transfer member level locking ownership.
2	Sublib Mgmt	Browse or delete intermediate records and forms
3	Migration	Register the contents of a library with SCLM
4	Database Contents	Create reports and tailored data sets against SCLM database
5	Architecture Report	Create architecture report
6	Export	Extract SCLM accounting information
7	Import	Incorporate exported data into the hierarchy
8	Audit and Version	Display Audit and Version members
9	Delete from Group	Delete members, accounting records, build maps, intermediate code and records from a group
10	Package Functions	View, delete and restore backed-up packages
11	Unit of Work	View and process Unit of Work elements
12	SCLM Explorer	Browse the relationship tables of your project
13	SCLM Search	Search a combination of SCLM groups, types and members for certain strings

Figure 61: Select option 1 to view the contents of a library.

On the panel titled SCLM Library - Entry Panel, specify the data set type where the high level architecture is located. In this case study, the data set type which contains the high level architecture definition is GENDEF, as shown in Figure 62. You may leave the field titled Member blank to receive a list of PDS members belonging to the group/Type data set specified. Ensure the option titled Hierarchy View is selected on the bottom of the screen. Press **Enter**.

SCLM	Library Utility - Entry P	anel
operon ===>		More: +
blank Display member list A Browse account info M Browse build map B Browse member D Delete member info	E Edit member V View member C Build member P Promote member U Update auth code	T Transfer owner N NOPROM processing W Where used
SCLM Library: Project . : CSJENNA Group <u>DEV1</u> Type <u>GENDEF</u> Member	(Blank or pattern for mem	ber selection list)
Select and rank member list	data <u>TAM</u> (T=TEXT,	A=ACCT, M=BMAP, S=SUBP)
Enter "/" to select option / Hierarchy view / Confirm delete / View processing options	Process <u>3</u> for Edit	1. Execute 2. Submit 3. View options

Figure 62: Specify the data set type where the architecture definition is stored.

On the panel titled Hierarchy View, type a C next to the high level architecture definition to Build the architecture definition, as shown in Figure 63. Remember that building the high level architecture definition will build the low-level architecture definitions and the associated source code. Press **Enter**.

Member List Command ===	: CSJENNA	.DEV1.GEND	EF - HIERARC	CHY VIEW -	AU2 Scro	ZDBSEL saved
A=Account C=Build	M=Map P=Promote	B=Browse U=Update	D=Delete T=Transfer	E=Edit N=Noprom	V=View ₩=WhereUsed	
Member	Status	Text	Chg Date	Chg Time	Account	Bld Map
		D D / 1	2000 /02 /2	1 1 1 . 1		
AUZDBSE	L *EDITED	DEV1	2009/02/2 Bottom of d	4 12:15:11 lata *******	DEV1	******
AUZDBSE	L *EDITED *********	DEV1 ******	2009/02/2 Bottom of d	4 12:15:11 lata *******	DEV1 ******	*****
AUZDBSE	L *EDITED	DEV1 *****	2009/02/2 Bottom of d	4 12:15:11 ata ******	DEV1 ********	******
AUZDBSE	L *EDITED	DEV1 *****	2009/02/2 Bottom of d	4 12:15:11 ata ******	DEV1	
AUZDBSE	L *EDITED	DEV1	2009/02/2 Bottom of d	4 12:15:11 lata ******	DEV1	******
AUZDBSE	L *EDITED	DEV1 *****	2009/02/2 Bottom of d	4 12:15:11 ata ******	DEV1	

Figure 63: Build the architecture definition by selecting option C.

On the panel titled SCLM Build – Entry Panel, ensure the information within the fields Project, Group, Type and Member are correct before pressing Enter, to ensure the specified asset is the one you want to build, as shown in Figure 64. Press **Enter**.

Command ===>SCLM Build	- Entry Panel
Build input: Project . : CSJENNA Group <u>DEV1</u> Type <u>GENDEF</u> Member <u>AUZDBSEL</u>	Enter "/" to select option / Error Listings only _ Workstation Build
Mode <u>1</u> 1. Conditional 2. Unconditional 3. Forced 4. Report 5. Information	Scope <u>2</u> 1. Limited 2. Normal 3. Subunit 4. Extended
Ex Sub Messages <u>3</u> <u>3</u> 1. Terminal Report <u>3</u> <u>3</u> 2. Printer	Process <u>1</u> 1. Execute 2. Submit

Figure 64: Double check the asset specified is the one you want to build.

When the SCLM Build function is invoked for the high level architecture definition all assets referenced within the architecture definition is assembled and linked, or compiled to create output that is either an executable program or a module that is then used as input to another executable program. That is, building an architecture definition causes the assets defined within the architecture definition to build as well.

The following Build Report is generate by the SCLM Build function and can be written to a data set that can either be kept or deleted, or the Build Report can be displayed on the screen and deleted upon exiting the Build Report. The options used during the Build function are listed within the comment section at the top of the Build report.

*******	*****	**************************************	of Data ***********	****
*******	*****	**********	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	*****
*******	*****	******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	*****
* *				**
* *				**
**	SOFTWARE	CONFIGURATION	AND LIBRARY MANAGER	(SCI.M) **
**	bor rund	2011110010111101		(502247)
**		BUTTD		++
* *		вотгр	REPORI	**
**			10 00 55	**
**		2009/02/24	12:28:55	**
**				**
**		PROJECT:	CSJENNA	**
**		GROUP:	DEV1	**
* *		TYPE:	GENDEF	**
**		MEMBER :	AUZDBSEL	**
**		ALTERNATE	: CSJENNA	**
* *		SCOPE:	NORMAL	**
**		MODE:	CONDITIONAL	**
* *				**
* *				**
*******	****	*****	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	****
*******	*****	*****	*****	****
****	** B II T T D	<u>о п т в п т е</u>		****** Page 1
	""ВОТБД	OUIPUIS	GENERAIED	Fage 1
MEMDED			MORD	
MEMDER	IIPE VI	LASION KE	WORD	
AUZDBSEL	OBJ	2 OB	J 	
AUZDBSEL	LIST	2 LI	ST	
AUZDBSEL	DBRM	2 OU	ГХ	
AUZDBSEL	DB2OUT	1		
AUZDBSEL	LOAD	1 LO.	AD	
AUZDBSEL	LINKLIST	1 LM	AP	
	****** B U I	LD MAPS	GENERATED	****** Page 2
		(RE	ASON FOR REBUILD)	
MEMBER	TYPE VI	ERSION ME	MBER TYPE	
AUZDBSEL	BINDDEF	1 **	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	
AUZDBSEL	CCDEE	- 2 אזז	ZDBSEL COBOL	
AUZDBOEL	GENDEE	1 **	****	
AUZDBSEL	LEODEE	1 ++		
AUZDESEL				******* 5 2
	~~ ВОТГО	OUTPUTS	DELETED	Page 3
NENDED	ייז שמעיש			
мемовк	TIPE VI	TRATON KE	INORD	
	++++++ 30 3000			
	****** NO MODU	JLES DELETED *	• • • • •	
	****** BUI	LD MAPS	DELETED	Page 4
		(RE.	ASON FOR DELETE)	

Example 1: SCLM Build report from high level architecture definition AUZDBSEL.

Once your asset has been successfully built, it must be promoted up through the project hierarchy. Promoting an asset means that you are moving the asset and its dependent objects up the hierarchy into the next highest group. Testing the promote process after a build checks to ensure the project's Group definitions are correct. When a promotion occurs within SCLM, accounting information is updated for all assets being promoted so that SCLM can track the lifecycle of that asset.

If an error occurs within the Build process, possible causes might be an error made within the source code itself, incorrect language definition parameters or incorrect parameters defined within the associated architecture definition. Review the SCLM messages to determine what the likely cause of the build failure is.

To promote the high level architecture definition for the new project, select option P on the panel titled Hierarchy View, as shown in Figure 65. Remember that promoting the high level architecture definition will build the low-level architecture definitions and the associated source code. Press **Enter**.

<u>M</u> enu <u>S</u> CLM <u>F</u> unctions <u>U</u> tilities <u>T</u> est <u>H</u> elp	
Member List : CSJENNA.DEV1.GENDEF - HIERARCHY VIEW - Command ===>	Member 1 of 1 croll ===> <u>PAGE</u>
A=Account M=Map B=Browse D=Delete E=Edit V=View C=Build P=Promote U=Update T=Transfer N=Noprom W=WhereU	sed
Member Status Text Chg Date Chg Time Account p AUZDBSEL DEV1 2009/02/24 12:15:11 DEV1 ************************************	Bld Map DEV1

Figure 65: Promote the architecture definition by selecting option P.

On the panel titled SCLM Promote – Entry Panel, ensure the information within the fields Project, Group, Type and Member are correct before pressing Enter, to ensure the specified asset is the one you want to promote, as shown in Figure 66. Press **Enter**.

	kstation Promote <u>H</u> elp
Command ===>	e - Entry Panel
Promote input: Project : CSJENNA From group . <u>DEV1</u> Type <u>GENDEF</u> Member <u>AUZDBSEL</u>	Enter "/" to select option _ Workstation Promote
Mode <u>1</u> 1. Conditional 2. Unconditional 3. Report	Scope <u>1</u> 1. Normal 2. Subunit 3. Extended
Output control: Ex Sub Messages . <u>3</u> <u>3</u> <u>1</u> . Terminal Report . <u>3</u> <u>3</u> <u>2</u> Printer	Process <u>1</u> 1. Execute 2. Submit
3. Data set 4. None	Printer <u>H</u> Volume

Figure 66: Double check the asset specified is the one you want to promote.

When the SCLM Promote function is invoked for the high level architecture definition, all assets referenced within the architecture definition are promoted as well. Accounting and auditing information for the assets being promoted are updated by the SCLM Promote function.

The following Promote Report is generated by the SCLM Promote function and can be written to a data set that can either be kept or deleted, or the Promote Report can be displayed on the screen and deleted upon exiting the Promote Report. The options used during the Promote function are listed within the comment section at the top of the report.

******	*******	* * * * * * * * *	* Top of	Data **********	*****
*****	*******	* * * * * * * * *	*******	******	*****
*****	*******	* * * * * * * * *	*******	******	*****
**					* *
**					**
* *	SOFTWARE	CONFIGUR	ATION AN	D LIBRARY MANAGER	(SCLM) **
**					* *
**		PROM	ΟΤΕ	REPORT	* *
**					* *
**		200	9/02/24	12:31:12	**
**					* *
**					* *
* *		PRO	JECT:	CSJENNA	**
* *		то	GROUP :	TEST	**
**		FRO	M GROUP:	DEV1	**
**		TYP	E:	GENDEF	* *
* *		ARC	н. мем.:	AUZDBSEL	**
**		ALT	ERNATE:	CSJENNA	**
* *		SCO	PE:	NORMAL	**
* *		MOD	Е:	CONDITIONAL	**
* *					**

Example 2: SCLM Promote report from high level architecture definition AUZDBSEL.

Example 2 Continued: SCLM Promote report from high level architecture definition AUZDBSEL.

**							
** NOTE:	"*" INDICATE	S "OUT OF	SCOPE" IT	EMS.			
********	***********	*********	**********	*************	*******	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	***
TYPE: BIN	IDDEF						
				COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1		
AUZDBOET	2009/02/09	12.02.51		v	v		
AUZDBSED	2009/02/09	12.02.31		А	л		
TYPE: CCD	EF						
MENDED		THE	MECCACE	COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
MEMDER	DAIE	TIME	MESSAGE	1691	DEVI		
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/09	12:02:42		х	х		
TYPE: COF	OL						
				COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1		
AUZOBSEL	2009/02/24	12.28.37		x	x		
110222222	2003, 02, 21						
TYPE: DBR	M						
MEMBER	DATE	TTME	MESSAGE	COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:57		x	х		
TYPE: DB2	CLIST						
				COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1		
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/09	12:02:56		x	х		
מער שמעת	OUT						
TIPE: DB2	.001			COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1		
AUZDDOFT	2000/02/24	12.29.50		v	v		
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:59		x	А		
TYPE: GE	NDEF				DUID 200-	-	
мемрер	ጉልጥም	TWD	MECCACE	COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
MENDER	DALE	TTME	MESSAGE	1691	DEAT		
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:15:11		x	x		

TYPE: LECDEF

MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	COPIED TO TEST	PURGED DEV1	FROM	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/09	12:02:47		x	x		
TYPE: LI	NKLIST			CODIED TO	DIIRGED	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1	FROM	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:29:01		x	x		
TYPE: LI	ST			CODIED TO	סווסמייס	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1	FROM	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:58		x	х		
TYPE: LO	AD			COPIED TO	PURGED	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1	FROM	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:29:00		x	x		
TYPE: OB	J			CODIED TO	DUDCED	FROM	
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	TEST	DEV1		
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:57		x	x		
*******	*********	*******	******	*********	******	*****	********
**		вU	ILDN	MAPS			**
**************************************	***********	*******	*******	*******	******	*****	*******
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	COPIED TO TEST	PURGED DEV1	FROM	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:55		x	x		
TYPE: CCD	EF						
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	COPIED TO TEST	PURGED DEV1	FROM	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:55		x	x		
TYPE: GEN	DEF						
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	COPIED TO TEST	PURGED DEV1	FROM	

Example 2 Continued: SCLM Promote report from high level architecture definition AUZDBSEL.

Example 2 Continued: SCLM Promote report from high level architecture definition AUZDBSEL.

AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:55		х	х	
TYPE: LEC	DEF					
MEMBER	DATE	TIME	MESSAGE	COPIED TO TEST	PURGED FROM DEV1	
AUZDBSEL	2009/02/24	12:28:55		X	X	
******	*****	******	* Bottom (of Data ****	******	****

Once your asset has been successfully promoted up through the project hierarchy, you can test the program by executing it.

If there are errors during the promote process, the mostly likely cause is an error within the Group parameters defined within the project. Check the SCLM messages to ensure which parameter is the cause.

Example 3 contains the results of executing the DB2 sample program AUZDBSEL.

Example 3: Results of executing sample program AUZDBSEL from the new project.

If the program executes correctly, this confirms that your project's definition is accurate, that the language definitions are correct, and that the architecture definitions were defined accurately.

3.13 Deploy the project

Once you have safely tested your new project within the sandbox and are satisfied that the project definition is correct, you can deploy your new project into production. Deploying a project simply means that the contents of a sandbox's data sets are copied to the main project's data sets, and the sandbox data sets are deleted.

Once a sandbox project has been deployed into production, the project name will no longer appear within the node Editable Sandboxes within the Remote Systems view. Instead, the deployed project will appear within the node Deployed Projects. A project filter matching the project's name must exist before you can see the project within the list of Deployed Projects.

This last task will describe how to deploy a project that was created within a sandbox, then create a project filter within the Deployed Projects node so that the new project can be displayed within the list of deployed projects.

To deploy a project, simply highlight the project name within the node Editable Sandboxes. Then right click the project name to see the pop-up menu. When the pop-up menu is displayed, as shown in Figure 67, select the option titled Deploy Project.



Figure 67: Select to deploy the sandbox project.

When the pop-up window titled Build Project Dialog is displayed, select the option titled Export after build. This will write the project definition into an external source data set. Click OK to continue.

Ruild Project Dialog						
Project Sandbox: CSJENNA [Main]						
Create/update project environment						
Eatch mode						
Edit source code						
Export after build						
OK Cancel						

Figure 68: Export the new project's definition.

A message will be returned when the project has been deployed, as shown in Figure 69.


Figure 69: Informational messages are returned about the deployment.

Clicking on the button titled Details will result in expanding the Information window to display additional information about the message. Click **OK** to close the informational message window.

Troubleshooting: Should an error be returned during any task, the task is written to the Reports node within the Remote Systems view, as discussed in this document in the subsection titled A Brief Introduction. It is these reports that Product Support will request when opening a PMR with IBM for diagnosis.

A project filter whose filter criteria matches the new project name must exist before the new project can be viewed within the node Deployed Projects. If one does not exist, a new project filter can be added by highlighting the node Deployed Projects. When the pop-up menu is displayed, select the option New, then select the option Project Filter from the second pop-up menu, as shown below in Figure 70.



Figure 70: Create a new project filter.

When the window titled New SCLM Project Filter is displayed, provide a fully-qualified project name, or a partially qualified pattern using an asterisk as a wild card character, that matches the new project, as shown below in Figure 71.

SCLM Administrator Toolkit	
Project filter	CSJENN*
Options	1 - All projects
0	OK Cancel

Figure 71: Provide the criteria for the project filter.

In this case study, the new project name was CSJENN (remember that the sandbox was called CSJENNA). To view a list of projects whose names match the specified criteria, an asterisk was specified as a wild card character. As a result, all projects whose name matches the specified criteria will be displayed when the project filter is expanded. Click **OK** when you have completed entering the project filter criteria.

The node Deployed Projects must be refreshed to pick up the new Project Filter that was just created. Right click the node Deployed Projects, and select the option titled Refresh from the pop-up menu, as shown in Figure 72.



Figure 72: Refresh the Deployed Projects node to see the new project filter.

When the node Deployed Projects is refreshed, the project filters are displayed, as shown below in Figure 73. Click on the **plus sign** ('+') next to the project filter to expand the filter and view the newly deployed project.



Figure 73: Collapse, then re-expand the node Deployed Projects to see the new project filter.

Once a project is deployed, it may still be edited should you decide changes need to be made. Simply double click the project within the Deployed Projects node. You will be asked if you want to create a sandbox for your project while changes are being made to the project. It is HIGHLY recommended that you create a sandbox to edit the project's definition. This will allow the project to remain intact while changes are being made to the sandbox, preventing costly errors from being introduced into the project currently being used within production.

When you select to create a sandbox for the deployed project you want to edit, you will see the sandbox project appear within a project filter in the node Editable Sandboxes. When you have completed making changes to the sandbox, you simply deploy the project following the instructions provided within this subsection of the whitepaper.

4 A Case for the Administrator Toolkit

Administering your project's definition isn't a daunting task when you use the Administrator Toolkit to assist you. Using the Administrator Toolkit to automate and streamline administration tasks, you can simplify complex tasks and reduce the amount of time it takes to complete them.

All SCLM macro parameters are available within the Administrator Toolkit, and main projects as well as alternate projects are fully supported.

Create sandboxes to test your new project in before making it available to your team members, or edit an existing project within a sandbox to ensure your changes give you the expected results without affecting the projects already in production.

Wizards within the Administrator Toolkit eliminate errors and help new users become accustomed to the nuances of SCLM, while seasoned administrators can automate processes that normally take time to complete.

The learning curve of creating and administering SCLM projects is reduced with a user-friendly interface in either ISPF panels or a workstation client. Using an intuitive flow, your project administrators will take less time performing administrative tasks, which will enable them to focus on other more business-critical tasks.

APPENDIX A: CREATE THE OBJECTS

The following DDL in Example 4 was used to create the DB2 objects used for this DB2 project. Simply copy it into your own dataset, then either run it through SPUFI or run it as a batch job using the sample JCL below in Example 7.

Example 4: Project DDL to create the necessary DB2 objects for this project.

```
create database dauzdb2;
commit;
create tablespace tauzdb2 in dauzdb2
segsize 4;
commit;
create table auzdb2.credit_card
    (card_num varchar(16),
     exp_date
              char(6),
     card_type
              varchar(16),
     card_holder varchar(40))
     in dauzdb2.tauzdb2;
commit;
create table auzdb2.transaction
     (card_num
               varchar(16),
     amount
              decimal (7,2))
     in dauzdb2.tauzdb2;
commit:
```

The following DML in Example 5 was used to insert data into the 'CREDIT_CARD' table. This data is required for this DB2 project. Simply copy it into your own dataset, then either run it through SPUFI or run it as a batch job using the sample JCL below in Example 7.

Example 5: Project DML for the first table to insert the necessary DB2 data for this project.

```
insert into auzdb2.credit_card
(card_num, exp_date, card_type, card_holder)
values ('4929717212000001',
     '200701',
     'VISA',
     'John Doe');
commit;
insert into auzdb2.credit_card
(card_num, exp_date, card_type, card_holder)
values ('5100046590000001',
     '200801',
     'Mastercard',
     'John Doe');
commit;
```

The following DML in Example 6 was used to insert data into the 'TRANSACTION' table. This data is required for this DB2 project. Simply copy it into your own dataset, then either run it through SPUFI or run it as a batch job using the sample JCL below in Example 7.

```
insert into auzdb2.transaction
(card_num, amount)
values ('4929717212000001',
      +458.26);
commit;
insert into auzdb2.transaction
(card num, amount)
values ('4929717212000001',
      -238.57);
commit;
insert into auzdb2.transaction
(card_num, amount)
values ('5100046590000001',
     +127.65);
commit;
insert into auzdb2.transaction
(card_num, amount)
values ('5100046590000001',
      -476.35);
commit;
```

Example 6: Project DML for the second table to insert the necessary DB2 data for this project.

The following sample JCL in Example 7 can be used to create the DB2 objects and populate the tables with data. Before you can run this JCL, it must be modified to fit your shop's requirements.

Example 7: Sample JCL to create the DB2 objects and populate the data.

```
//#JOBCARD#
//*
//*
         ******
//****
//*
//* DB2 SAMPLE SQL PROGRAM
//*
     ******
//***
//*
//JOBLIB DD DSN=#DB2.SDSNLOAD#,DISP=SHR
//BATCHSQL EXEC PGM=IKJEFT01,DYNAMNBR=20
//SYSTSPRT DD SYSOUT=*
//SYSPRINT DD SYSOUT=*
//SYSUDUMP DD SYSOUT=*
//SYSTSIN DD *
DSN SYSTEM(#SSID#)
RUN PROGRAM(DSNTEP2) -
LIB('#DB2.RUNLIB.LOAD#')
END
/*
//SYSIN DD DISP=SHR, DSN=#YOUR.SQL.DATASET#(#CREATEDDL#)
     DD DISP=SHR, DSN=#YOUR.SQL.DATASET#(#INSERTDML#)
11
11
     DD DISP=SHR, DSN=#YOUR.SQL.DATASET#(#INSERTDML#)
/*
```

The following variables within the sample JCL must be changed before the batch job can be submitted.

#JOBCARD#

The proper job card information required for batch jobs within your IT department.

#DB2.SDSNLOAD#

The name of the DB2 load library that contains program IKJEFT01.

#SSID#

The DB2 subsystem on which the objects will be created.

#DB2.RUNLIB.LOAD#

The name of the DB2 library that contains program DSNTEP2.

#YOUR.SQL.DATASET#

The name of the data set in which the DDL to create the tables is stored.

#CREATEDDL#

The PDS member name in which the CREATE syntax is stored.

#INSERTDML#

The PDS members in which the INSERT syntax is stored for both the CREDIT_CARD table and the TRANSACTION table.

APPENDIX B: THE COBOL PROGRAM

The following program is migrated into the SCLM project in section 3.10 of this Whitepaper titled "Migrate Project Assets". Copy this COBOL program into a PDS data set. It is from this PDS data set that the COBOL program will be migrated into your project.

Example 8: Sample COBOL program for the DB2 project.

```
id division.
program-id.
    auzdbsel.
    Rocket Software SCLM Administrator Toolkit
    Sample program to use for DB2 Language
4
    Definitions and Architecture Definitions.
*
    Copyright, 2007, Rocket Software, Inc.
*
    All rights reserved.
*
    This program displays the contents of the credit card
    table.
    Revision Date
                     Author
                               Reason
      00
             04/23/07 CRMB
                               New program.
    Note:
    This program runs as a user batch or TSO program.
data division.
working-storage section.
01 ws-dbesel-eye-catcher pic x(80)
    value "auzdbsel".
01 ws-sql-code
                         pic s9(9) comp-5 value 0.
                         pic s9(9) comp-5 value +100.
01 not-found
    exec sql declare auzdb2.credit_card table
    (
        card_num varchar(16),
        exp_date char(6),
        card_type varchar(16),
        card_holder varchar(40)
    )
    end-exec.
    exec sql declare ccard-cursor cursor for
            select * from auzdb2.credit_card
    end-exec.
    exec sql include sqlca end-exec.
    exec sql begin declare section end-exec.
*01 sqlcode
                                pic s9(9)
                                           comp-5.
*01 sqlstate
                                pic x(5).
01 ccard.
    02 card-num.
                               pic s9(4)
        49 card-num-len
                                            comp-5.
        49 card-num-data
                               pic x(16).
    02 exp-date
                                pic x(6).
```

```
02 card-type.
        49 card-type-len
                                pic s9(4)
                                             comp-5.
        49 card-type-data
                                 pic x(16).
    02 card-holder.
        49 card-holder-len
                                pic s9(4)
                                              comp-5.
        49 card-holder-data
                                pic x(40).
*
    exec sql end declare section end-exec.
/
*
procedure division.
aa-main section.
aa-0000.
    exec sql whenever sqlerror goto aa-8000 end-exec
    exec sql whenever sqlwarn goto aa-8000 end-exec
    exec sql whenever not found continue end-exec
    perform ba-process
    go to aa-9999
aa-8000.
    display "aa-sqlcode = " sqlcode
aa-9999.
    goback
/
    Main processing routine
ba-process section.
ba-0000.
    exec sql open ccard-cursor end-exec
    exec sql fetch ccard-cursor into :ccard end-exec
    if sqlcode not = not-found
        perform ca-print
    else
        display "ba-sqlcode = " sqlcode
    end-if
    exec sql close ccard-cursor end-exec
ba-9999.
    exit
ca-print section.
ca-0000.
    perform until sqlcode not = 0
        display "Card number: "
                card-num-data
        display "Expiration date: "
                exp-date
        display "Card type: "
                card-type-data
        display "Card holder: '
                card-holder-data
        exec sql fetch ccard-cursor into :ccard end-exec
    end-perform
ca-9999.
    exit
```



© Copyright IBM Corporation 2009

IBM United States of America

Produced in the United States of America

All Rights Reserved

The e-business logo, the eServer logo, IBM, the IBM logo, OS/390, zSeries, SecureWay, S/390, Tivoli, DB2, Lotus and WebSphere are trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation in the United States, other countries or both.

Lotus, Lotus Discovery Server, Lotus QuickPlace, Lotus Notes, Domino, and Sametime are trademarks of Lotus Development Corporation and/or IBM Corporation.

Java and all Java-based trademarks and logos are trademarks of Sun Microsystems, Inc. in the United States, other countries or both.

Other company, product and service names may be trademarks or service marks of others.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION PROVIDES THIS PAPER "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions, therefore, this statement may not apply to you.

Information in this paper as to the availability of products (including portlets) was believed accurate as of the time of publication. IBM cannot guarantee that identified products (including portlets) will continue to be made available by their suppliers.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typographical errors. Changes may be made periodically to the information herein; these changes may be incorporated in subsequent versions of the paper. IBM may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this paper at any time without notice.

Any references in this document to non-IBM Web sites are provided for convenience only and do not in any manner serve as an endorsement of those Web sites. The materials at those Web sites are not part of the materials for this IBM product and use of those Web sites is at your own risk.

IBM may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not give you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to:

IBM Director of Licensing IBM Corporation 4205 South Miami Boulevard Research Triangle Park, NC 27709 U.S.A.